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“The Surveying & Spatial Sciences Institute (SSSI) is Australia's peak
body representing the interests of surveying and spatial science
professionals, combining the disciplines of land surveying, engineering
& mining surveying, cartography, hydrography, remote sensing and
spatial information science.”
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Vision and Mission

OUR VISION – What SSSI will look like in 2021
SSSI is Australia’s pre-eminent membership organisation
for geospatial, surveying and other professionals who
define the ‘where’ in a complex and changing landscape.

OUR GUIDING PRINCIPLE -PRECISION WITH PURPOSE
SSSI delivers sectoral leadership, world-class certification and
professional development opportunities for these professionals so
that they can deliver economic, environmental and social
improvement with technical excellence.
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1 Surveying and Spatial Sciences Institute
The Surveying and Spatial Sciences Institute combines the disciplines of land, hydrographic, engineering and mining
surveying, photogrammetry, cartography, geodesy, remote sensing and spatial information science. The Institute’s
members are involved in communities of practice such as land administration, land development, natural resource
management, earth observation, emergency management, forestry, agriculture, defence, marine environment,
local government, health, education, tourism, transport and many more.
Surveyors and Spatial Scientists deal with policy, administration, collection, measurement, analysis, interpretation,
portrayal and dissemination of spatially-related land and sea information, together with associated planning,
design and management. They also acquire, integrate, manage, analyse, interpret, map or distribute information
about a location in space and time. They develop, design and provide related equipment, software and valueadded services; undertake applied research, knowledge management and technology development; and manage,
educate and train others.
The principal objects of the Institute are:













to empower the Members to strive for excellence in the application and practice of surveying and spatial
science for the benefit of the community;
to represent, support, provide for and promote the professional interests of Members that work in the
surveying and spatial industry in all its disciplines;
to provide a national and regional identity to enable the development of the surveying and spatial industry
as a whole;
to maintain and promote standards for Members and professional conduct of Members who work in the
surveying and spatial industry;
to encourage, promote and assist Members to:

pursue their professional commitments in an ethical, energetic and scientific manner;

maintain a high level of personal and professional esteem when interacting with the community,
clients, colleagues and allied professionals;

actively participate in the processes that shape society;

encourage, assist and to professionally develop new surveying and spatial science graduates;
to enhance the professional character and status of Members who practice in the surveying and spatial
sciences as worthy contributors to the community;
to promote honourable professional conduct and surveying and spatial science practice and to safeguard
the interests of the profession of surveying and spatial science generally;
to encourage the study of surveying and spatial sciences and to improve the general professional and
technical knowledge of surveyors and spatial scientists and persons intending to engage in the professions
of surveying or spatial science;
to promote and provide the awarding of prizes, scholarships, exhibitions, bursaries and funds for the
purposes of education in all branches of surveying and spatial science and;
to write, edit, print, publish, issue and circulate a periodic journal or journals, papers circulars and other
literary matter as is conducive to the other objects set out in the Constitution to facilitate the exchange of
ideas and knowledge between Members of the Institute and the community generally by lectures,
conferences and any other means and to maintain libraries and data bases of materials and publications
relevant to the spatial sciences.
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President’s Report

I want to start this year’s report (2017/18) with a hats-off to all the volunteers who give so much of their time and effort to develop and strengthen SSSI. More than a
hundred of you are actively involved in some committee or activity. And every time that we call for more people to get involved, there is no shortage of volunteers. So,
once again thanks to all the volunteer! It is heartening to report, that the younger generation especially are stepping up, picking up the pace and are providing great
leadership. It makes me proud to have been part of the leadership of SSSI.
During my first year as President of SSSI I focused my attention on implementing the new constitution, setting up all the governance structures to match the new
constitution. During this last year in SSSI we have had to spend a lot of time addressing several operational matters. I highlight a few:
 As you all know we have installed a new CEO. Peter has proven to be a great asset to SSSI and I am looking forward to continuing working with him.
 This year we have had a very high staff turn-over. Some have moved on because they have found better alternatives, and that is normal. But unfortunately, we
have also lost three good staff members due to injury or ill health. We have worked with them through these personal issues and continue to do so.
 Unfortunately, one of our commission leaders, Craig Smith, passed away leaving a huge gap. Whilst this is never great, we have now replaced him with the vibrant
Petra Helmholz who is doing an outstanding job.
We have been aware of the inequalities in our industry for a long time. We recognise that the absence of women in leadership in our industry is an issue that needs to
be addressed and we are committed to do just that. We have set targets to address gender inequality, but these have been difficult to reach. However, the board and
staff are all committed to ensure that we do what we can to get a greater balance. More than that, we have also addressed this issue in terms of an official policy
document that addresses equality, diversity and bullying – see the discussion under Professional Standards below.

Perhaps one of our most important achievements in the last year was the
development and adoption of a new strategic road map. I will encourage all members
to review the roadmap – available on the website, under About us. It spells out SSSI’s
strategy, with timelines and sub-projects for the next few years, taking us to 2021.
This document will help to focus everyone’s attention on strategic activities. It also
provides ample opportunity for people to get involved in activities that shape our
future. I want to highlight a few items from this document here:
 Our Vision: SSSI is Australia’s pre-eminent membership organisation for
geospatial, surveying and other professionals who define the ‘where’ in a
complex and changing landscape.
 Our guiding principle is ‘precision with purpose’.
 SSSI will deliver sectoral leadership, world-class certification and professional
development opportunities for the Survey and Spatial professionals so that they
can deliver economic, environmental and social improvement with technical
excellence.
I also need to add some comment on the governance of the Institute. Our Permanent
Advisory Committees provide targeted support to the board while the Standing
Committees take on specific Operational activities in collaboration with staff.
Permanent Advisory Committees
The Commission Chairs committee. This committee is chaired by the Hydrographic
Commission Chair (Richard Cullen) and only meets on an Ad Hoc basis to address
issues of concern across different Commissions. The normalisation of our certification
programs is a major issue raised by this committee, it is now a major issue on our
Strategic Roadmap.
The Finance, Risk and Audit is currently chaired by Paul Digney. Paul and this
committee have played a key role in supporting the Board and CEO; we have
continued to receive good financial advice from this group.
The Professional Standards - soon after the establishment of this committee it
became clear that our policies and procedures were not all enough to adequately deal
with all issues. This year this committee continued the work started in the previous
year and it has done a lot of work to fix many of the issues, and we continue to work
in that space. The committee has representation at Professions Australia and we are
ensuring that our policies and procedures are in line with those of the wider
Professional Community. Important issues we have addressed includes:
o
o

The Complaints Procedure is now clearly and unambiguously defined
We now have a policy for equity and diversity policy through which we address:
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All volunteers active under SSSI are now treated as staff. This means that if you are working as a volunteer for SSSI, you have the same rights and privileges as a
staff member, but you also now must comply with Company Policies including our General Code of Conduct, in the same way a paid staff member must do.
Any form of bullying or discrimination in terms of race gender or age

The SSSI Membership committee, continues to perform its duties and is still functions well under the leadership of Mr John Minehan.
Standing Committees
These committees are operational and exist to further the vision mission and purpose of SSSI.
 The Education and Leadership Development. This committee, responsible for the Education pillar of the 2026 Agenda is progressing a ‘living lab’ concept in
collaboration with the company Cofluence (John Wells and Alison Hornery). The committee struggled over the last year because most of their activities require
substantial funding. This is now on the Strategic Road map and are being funded accordingly. One of the first tasks will be to review our responsibility and
involvement in Education and then target our spending accordingly.
 The Fellows and Honorary Fellows committee now has 90 fellows and 37 Honorary Fellows.
 The Board has decided that since most of the functions of the Membership Services Standing committee has now been taken over by Full time staff members, this
committee no longer serves a purpose and therefore it was disbanded.
 We have renewed our MOU with the Board of the Journal of Spatial Sciences and in the process also agreed to increase the publication frequency. We are working
towards closer collaboration between this Journal and Position Magazine.
 The MOU with Position magazine has also been renewed, however we have decided to enter further discussions with Intermedia (the publisher) to improve the
offering to our members and to also to better leverage the role of the magazine in our industry.
Collaborations
As you all know, SSSI has a special relationship with SIBA. The most important way in which we collaborate with SIBA is the Locate Conferences. Under the leadership of
Dr Zaffar Sadiq Mohamed-Ghouse Locate 18 was a great success, both in terms of what it delivered to our members and what it produced financially for SSSI.
Congratulations to SIBA’s Maurits van der Vlugt who is now chairing the Locate conferences.
The National Survey Collaboration Forum is gaining more traction. The current members are SSSI, ISNSW and ISVIC. We are envisaging that this will soon grow to have
representation from all the states and it will continue to focus on matters of national interest for the survey community.
SSSI has also been busy strengthening our position Internationally.
 We will resign our MOU with SSNZ (formerly NZIS)
 With the ASEAN Survey Congress coming to Darwin we are collaborating very closely with ASEAN FLAG and have recently signed an MOU to collaborate with them.
 One of the SSSI representatives at FIG, Prof. David Mitchell was elected as FIG Commission 2 Chair
 We are currently finalising a new MOU with the Pacific Geospatial Surveying Council (PGSC).
Highlights
I have already referred to the success of Locate 18, but I do want to list it here again as one of the real highlights this year. Apart from the successful presentation streams
and the success of the exhibition spaces, this year we introduced a new concept the ‘Interaction Zone’. Done in partnership with the company Cofluence, this was an
outstanding idea, and many found it to be truly inspiring.
All the regional conferences were well attended, and we have had good feedback from all of them.
Mary-Ellen Feeney: By now you are all familiar with Mary-Ellen and the Homeward Bound project to support and encourage women in STEM industries. It has been a real
honour for me to work with Mary-Ellen. She is a great ambassador and I hope that others will follow in her footsteps.
Finance
We budgeted for a loss for $164,495.45, because we understood we needed to invest in order to make required changes however, we have ended up with a loss of
$281,903.35. This loss was incurred due mostly to costs related to changes in our staff. We have had to pay out staff that left, employ temporary staff and we decided to
engage in a personnel consultant to assist us in getting the right CEO, someone who could lead the organisation to new heights.
Membership
Our membership numbers have declined again, and we are currently standing at 2158. The good news is that the drop is not as sharp as what it was the previous year,
with growth specifically in the younger age groups.
Finally, this is the end of my term as President, and I will be stepping back from all active duties in SSSI to focus on other important matters. I want to thank those who
supported me over the last eight years of service in SSSI leadership roles. My Presidency has been a very rough ride for me, but I believe that I leave the institute in a good
condition, and in the hands of a leadership team that will take it to new heights. All the best to you Zaffar and Peter.

Gabriel Van Wyk
President
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report

2017-18 was a difficult yet hopeful year for SSSI. This was a year in which the SSSI Board made many hard
decisions to position SSSI for a stronger future.
Organisational change is always difficult. Changes requiring tough choices about staff, organisational structure,
resourcing and budgets are a significant challenge for any organisation.
Those decisions made, the SSSI Board and broader leadership have firmly turned their eyes to the future. That
future is a SSSI which is bigger, stronger, and more focused on our members.
May 2018 saw the adoption of SSSI’s new Strategic Roadmap, taking us through to 2021. This Roadmap will affect
every part of SSSI and benefit every SSSI member. Very significant changes will be needed over the next three
years to achieve our 2021 objectives:







an engaged membership growing by 2026 to
80% of the sector
an organisational reputation positioned with
national influence
a dynamic network of diverse and multidisciplinary professionals
a recognised contributor to Australia’s future
through innovative practice
a certification program valued by the
profession, business and community
a robust organisation that is well-governed and
financially sound.

It’s an ambitious plan. By 2021, it will position SSSI as
one of the best professional membership organisations
in Australia.
The SSSI Strategic Roadmap has a lot of thought,
discussion and ideas behind it, and hard work ahead to
ensure it delivers for our members. To be successful it
will involve all SSSI leaders and staff, and many SSSI
members. I am confident of their commitment.
I thank the Board, Committee and Commission
leadership, Members, Sustaining Partners and staff of
SSSI for their support and guidance in my first few
months as CEO. I look forward to working with you to
build the strong SSSI we all want, and which our
members deserve.
Peter Olah
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The Board 2017-18
1/7/17 – 30/6/2018

Gaby van Wyk – President

Gabriel Van Wyk graduated as a geographer and has been working in the field of
GIS for more than 30 years. He has had an extensive career in consultation to
various government agencies, utilities and the corporate sector on delivering
strategic or mission-critical solutions with integrated spatial intelligence. His areas
of interest and expertise extend into Open Data, Emergency and Early Warning
Systems, Big Data Management, Cross System Data Integration and Data Integrity.
Gaby also lectured in Geo-Information Science at the University of Pretoria, was a
leading contributor to the South African Standards Generating body for GIS and is
also the past president of GISSA (SSSI of South Africa).
Zaffar Sadiq Mohamed-Ghouse – Director

1/7/17 – 30/6/2018

Dr Zaffar Sadiq Mohamed-Ghouse is currently the Director (ACT & NSW)
for SSSI. He is also the Director for Business, Research & International
Relations at FrontierSI (Australia's peak research organisation for Spatial).
He holds a pivotal role as an adviser to various National and International
spatial organisations. He has 20 years of experience in client management,
strategic consulting studies, business development, project management,
systems review and integration for Utility Industry and Government,
design, development and management of spatial databases, review data
framework policies, develop spatial analyses techniques and technology
including GIS applications development for major clients in Australia, New
Zealand, Malaysia, Indonesia, India and Saudi Arabia. He has led several
Multi-Million Dollar National Mapping projects for State and Federal
governments globally.
Alex Leith- Director

1/7/17 – 6/12/2017
Alex Leith works as a software developer for the Cooperative Research Centre for
Spatial Information, and is the Chairman of the Tasmanian Regional Committee of
the Surveying and Spatial Sciences Institute, as well as a member of the SSSI Board
of Directors. Alex graduated with a degree in Surveying and Spatial Information
Sciences with honours in 2011, and was certified as a Geographic Information
Systems Professional in 2015. Alex received the Young Processional of the Year,
Tasmania, in 2013 and again in 2015, and has won the Most Outstanding
Tasmanian Benefit two years in a row at GovHack Tasmania. Alex has a
background in systems administration and spatial software development. More
recently, his work has been focused in the area of DevOps, designing and
implementing full-stack solutions using open source software and cloud
infrastructure. He has a keen interest in technology and experience and expertise
with a wide range of data, software and hardware related to spatial information.
Alex has presented at several international, national and local conferences and is
the founder of the Tasmanian GeoRabble chapter.
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The Board 2017-18
Kerry Smyth - Director

1/7/17 – 30/6/18

Kerry Smyth has extensive experience in the Spatial Sciences professions including
technical, management, operational and strategic roles. Kerry runs her own
consulting business Spatialize, and is extensively committed to SSSI as WA Chair, SIC
Commission Chair and Board Director. Previously, she held senior positions in the
WA Departments Planning, Landgate, Land Information, Land Administration, and
Land Surveys. Kerry has diverse leadership experience in customer service,
marketing, project and contract management, procurement, plus financial, human
resource and asset management. She is a core change agent and driver for
improvement. Kerry is a recognized technical leader and mentor for women in nontraditional professions, having paved the way in many gender first achievements.
Kerry has professional certification GISP-AP, a BSc Cartography (with distinction)
from Curtin Uni, Dip Eng Surv, Dip Carto, Cert Public Sector Management, Cert
Quality Customer Service, and is a Local Gov Elected Member.
She has always played an active role in the promotion of the profession through SSSI and predecessors, SSI, MSIA,
AURISA, AIC & IMTA. Kerry Smyth has been the Convener of the WA Surveying and Spatial Sciences Conference for 4
consecutive years. She is recognized nationally for an outstanding career in the spatial sciences and her leadership of
professionals in non-traditional roles. Kerry was WA Spatial Professional of the Year 2015 and is currently involved
with pro bono strategic projects and voluntary work for not for profit organisations including SSSI. She works as a
spatial ambassador and expert witness through her consultancy Spatialize
Rob Sarib– Director

1/7/17 – 30/6/18
Rob has been a Government professional surveyor for over 20 years and has managed
and performed surveys in a variety of projects in the disciplines of cadastral and
geodetic surveying; and land survey administration and infrastructure.
Rob has been an active member of the Surveyors Board of NT for 16 years, a member of
the ICSM Permanent Committee on Geodesy for 16 years and on the AuScope GNSS
Committee for 10 years. Rob has also been an active member of FIG since 2002 –
provision of professional and technical survey advice through Commission 5 –
Positioning and Measurement: and the Asia Pacific Capacity Development Network.
Rob was an active member of ISA from 1992 to its merger with SSI in 2003; he was a
foundation member of SSI and has been an active member of SSSI since its inception.

Richard Cullen– Director

1/7/17 – 30/6/18
A former Officer of the Royal Australian Navy (RAN) within the Maritime Geospatial
branch, specialising in nautical hydrographic surveying. Richard also had the
opportunity to both re-develop the internationally accredited Category B Syllabus
course for Navy, instruct the Category B course and later became the Officer in Charge
of the RAN hydrographic school. He continues activities running his hydrographic survey
company Hydrographic & Cadastral Survey, which started in 2005. Conducting survey in
bathymetry, dredging, environmental, land, nautical, feature detection and lately
involved in World Bank projects to capacity build the hydrographic practice for an
entire country. Richard has been involved with the Commission since 2005. Having been
an Australian Hydrographic Surveyors Certification Panel (AHSCP) member since 2007,
the Panel and SSSI Committee have moved the profession forward in many areas
including recognition of certification both nationally and internationally and, promotion
of the profession overall.
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Franco Rea - Director

1/7/17 – 30/6/18

Franco Rea is a Director of Alexander Symonds and as a licensed surveyor has more
than 27 years of experience in the Australian surveying industry. A past recipient of the
prestigious Sydney John Stokes Award for technical excellence and professionalism in
surveying and winner of the SA Spatial Professional of the year, Franco’s expertise
covers property, construction, engineering and 3D laser Scanning for both the private
sector and governments.
Major South Australian land developments he has worked on include Mawson Lakes,
Craigburn Farm, Westwood, Walkley Heights and Seaford Meadows, while he has also
served leading mining and petroleum companies in Australia and undertaken numerous
dimensional control surveys for clients around the world.

Lee Hellen – Director

16/12/17 – 30/6/18
Lee is a Registered Surveyor with Cadastral and Consulting Endorsement in
Queensland and Registered Licensed Surveyor in the Northern territory. Lee is
the owner and founder of Land Solution Australia Pty Limited, a private industry
leader is Surveying and Spatial science. An innovator and business leader, Lee has
served on numerous SSSI and SIBA boards and committees over the last 12 years.
He has received several individual and industry awards for excellence in
Surveying and Spatial Science for his work in this industry since 2007. Lee has

formal qualifications at a bachelor and post graduate certificate level in surveying and spatial science and is a Graduate
Member of the Australian Institute of company Directors (AICD).
A passionate advocate for surveying and spatial services within the wider community, Lee was jointly responsible for
devising the 3dQld strategy which is leading the profession through evolution of Australian Cadastre to meet the needs
of a digital world. A future business leader and innovator for our industry, Lee has a lasting appreciation of the history
of the surveying and mapping profession and the many exciting opportunities for the future of the profession.
Lee openly shares his ideas for success for the greater collective good of the industry and community. Lee actively
champions the industry across internal and external industry sectors to bring greater awareness and understanding of
the surveying and mapping professions.
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Jonathan Saxon– Company Secretary

1/7/17 – 30/6/18

Jonathan Saxon is the Managing Director of Project Surveyors (formerly Clement &
Reid). Jonathan is a Registered Land Surveyor in NSW since 1993, and holds a Bachelor
of Surveying Degree from UNSW (1988). Jonathan also has a Masters of Management
Degree from Macquarie Graduate School of Management – a world ranked
Management School, and a part of Macquarie University, which he obtained in 2001.
Jonathan has been primarily employed in the private sector as a Surveyor since
graduation, and has been managing his current business since 1995, as one of three
directors. In 2008 he became the last President of the Institution of Surveyors
Australia, and in 2009, was the first President of the Surveying and Spatial Sciences
Institute. Jonathan was also a member of the Merger Working Group which ultimately
saw the creation of the Institute by fully merging SSI and ISA together. Jonathan held
the role of Treasurer from 2010-2017.

Paul Digney – Director

6/12/27 – 30/6/18
Paul Digney is the Survey Technical Director for Jacobs Australia and is a licensed surveyor
in Tasmania and Victoria with over 25 years’ experience in the surveying/spatial
profession. Paul has shared his employment equally between public and private sector
roles with a strong focus on geodetic/cadastral surveying and more recently 3D laser
scanning, digital engineering and strategic consulting.
Paul holds a Bachelor of Surveying – Hons (1997) from the University of Tasmania and a
Graduate Certificate in Management (2003) University of Western Sydney.

Paul is a passionate Tasmanian who is the current Chair of the Tasmanian Regional Committee and has been actively
involved with the SSSI and legacy organisations over the past two decades.

Richard Syme – Director

6/12/17 – 30/6/18
Richard has 11 years experience working in the Survey and Geospatial sector in
Melbourne, Victoria. He is currently a senior GIS Consultant at Aurecon, where he leads a
team of geospatial professionals to deliver GIS services on a range of engineering and
advisory projects. His specialties are in web mapping, 3D modeling and analysis, mobile
GIS and data management.
Richard has been active in the SSSI volunteer community since 2014. He began on the
Victorian YP Committee, where he was the Victorian representative on the National YP
Committee. In 2016 he was elected Chair of the National YP Committee and served until
October 2017 when he took on the vacant role of SSSI Director – Victoria.
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Membership
Overseas,
55
Northern Territory, 18

Western Australia, 281
Queensland, 541
New South
Wales, 300
South
Australia, 257
Australian Capital
Territory, 75

Victoria, 309
Tasmania, 82

308

69

162

Membership Figures as at the 2nd July 2018

900

479
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Membership

Member, 1235

Associate, 91
Affiliate, 32

Fellow, 86
1st Year Graduate, 4

Student, 392

Honorary Fellow, 37
Part Time Student, 26

2nd Year Graduate, 15

Total Membership
1918
Membership Figures as at the 2nd July 2018
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Regional Reports
Queensland Regional Report
Roy Somerville, Chair
This year commenced with us building on our membership growth and communication, including showcasing
what SSSI QLD (our member volunteers and staff) do on behalf of its members in events and advocacy.
The Queensland Regional Committee has been very active and wish to formally thank those members that
have lead us over the last 12 months, namely: Paul Reed - Vice Chair, Angus Scown - SICC Rep, Mark Hickey,
Owen Cantrill - Hydro Rep, Dale Atkinson - YP Rep, Sudarshan Karki, Stephen Jess - Northern Region Chair,
Peter Swan - Treasurer, Noel Davidson - EMSC Rep, Peter Kinne - RSPC Rep, Tom McDonald - Central Region
Chair, Ewen Sneddon - LSC Rep and Lee Hellen - National Director. Thank you all for your fantastic
contributions.

Webinars
We have run many webinars throughout the year and hope to run more for 2018/19. Webinars included:
1. The Future of 3D QLD Cadastral Webinar
2. The Introduction to the new Queensland Globe 2017
3. Control Surveys using GNSS
4. Economic Evaluation of Prescribed Fire as a Bushfire Risk Mitigation Tool
5. Community Management Webinar
Young Professionals and Mentoring Program
We have been working to build our Qld Young Professional Committee this year and offering mentoring to our young graduates. On the 15 July 2017 we
held a YP Social Function at the XXXX Brewery. We held a Mentoring Session at Logan City Council on 23 August 2017. On the 10 May 2018 the SSSI
Queensland's Young Professionals held a tour of Brisbane's Queen's Wharf project for all members and non-members under 35.
Seminars/Workshops
Privatisation, Community Title and Town Planning Seminar
This seminar was held in 5 October at West End and focused on Privatisation, the New Planning Act and Survey Standards fit for purposes.
AHS/SSSI Hydrography Seminars
The SSSI National Hydrography Commission organised an event on 25 October 2017 which included a Technical Tour of the Queensland Government
Hydraulics Laboratory. This had 35 Hydrography Members in attendance.
Commander Adam Muckult and his Royal Australian Navy team hosted two hydrographic seminars on Tuesday 22 May at HMAS Cairns - Demystifying
SSSI membership within the Hydrographic Commission & Demystifying the Calculation of Uncertainty.
GNSS Workshops
The SSSI Qld LSC held a successful GNSS workshop at Easts Leagues Club on Friday 20 April. Over 45 delegates had the opportunity to see live
demonstrations with various brands of equipment and watch the data calculations undertaken on the software of their choice. Thanks to C.R. Kennedy,
Position Partners and Ultimate Positioning Group for their support.
The Northern Group held a successful Northern Group Technical GNSS Seminar in beautiful Bowen in May 2018. Over 25 delegages gathered to hear
technical presentations on GNSS and uncertainty from Dale Atkinson and Dr Glenn Campbell.
Reinstatement for the less experienced
Ewen Sneddon, Chair of the Qld LSC presented a Reinstatement for less experienced surveyors seminar to 27 surveyors on in May 2018 at the Jen Hotel
in Brisbane.
He again delivered his workshop in June 2018, this time to over 25 local Gold Coast and Northern NSW attendees at Southport Sharks.
Graduate Surveyor Workshop
Over 25 early career surveyors gathered at the Hotel Jen in Brisbane on 11 May 2018 to hear presentations on the Board registration process, career
development, rural surveying and other topics. Attendees then joined with some of the Central Group members for networking drinks.
Central Group Seminar – Brisbane
Central Group members travelled south to join Brisbane colleagues for a seminar on 12 May 2018. Speakers included the SBQ and the DNRME, as well
as interesting presentations on vegetation management and mapping drones. A few attendees then continued onto the NRL double header at Suncorp
Stadium!
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NSW Cadastral Seminar
On 7 June 2018 almost 30 delegates got together to hear from David Job, Chris Abbott and John Minehan on relevant cadastral updates and issues for
the NSW region. This was an ideal opportunity to see informative presentations, network with other professionals and gain those important NSW
Cadastral CPD points.
Conferences
Central Group Conference - Hervey Bay
A successful Central Group Conference was held at the Hervey Bay Boat club on 20-21 October 2017. The Friday conference was well attended with
separate streams for surveyors and spatial professionals, and it reminded attendees of their professional importance in an ever changing digital and
positional world.
The conference ended on Saturday with a GNSS workshop presented by Matt Higgins from DNRME. We had great speakers and a bigger turnout
compared to previous years. Thanks to Ray Tabulo, our past Central Group Chair, for all his hard work in putting a wonderful program together.
Northern Group Conference – Townsville
The Northern Group Conference held on 9-11 November 2017 was extremely successful with 97 in attendance. A big thank you to Dale Atkinson (our
past Northern Group Chair) and the Northern Group Committee for arranging such a great program. At the Conference the Northern Group
Committee held an AGM where many items were discussed, including appointing a new Northern Group Chair for next year. Stephen Jess gladly
accepted the role. At our Conference Dinner SSSI welcomed two members as SSSI Fellows: Robert Pentecost and Graham Ward. By honouring them
with this prestigious award we thank them for their contributions to SSSI and the Industry over the years.
Queensland Spatial Excellence Awards (QSEA)
Our last event for the year was the QSEA. The Queensland surveying and spatial profession came together on Friday 1 December at a gala dinner
held at The Hilton to celebrate the outstanding achievements of individuals and organisations in the industry. What a way to finish off the year then
to acknowledge the contributions by so many of our fantastic members. See our website for the list of winners.
Membership
SSSI Qld has had a solid year in retaining our members and increasing our membership through re-admissions and new members. We have worked
on improving our communications and showcasing our advocacy and this has helped with our success.
SSSI Qld Staff
Katie Le Miere took over from Suzy in September 2018 as our Administration & Events Officer and she has been a great asset to the team. Our staff
are the essential key that underpinned the success SSSI Qld has achieved this year. Thank you, Kelly and Katie.
We have a great group of active members in SSSI Qld who have demonstrated commitment, vision and mutual respect for our members, professions
and community responsibilities. Our plans for next year is more of the same activities, only better.
Immediate priorities:
 Our SSSI Qld Conference 2018, Central Group and Northern Group Conferences - making them just as successful as last years.
 Organising a Fellows Dinner – to honour those who have contributed greatly to SSSI.
 Increasing our Student Membership and developing our Young Professionals.
 Supporting our Members through various programs run with our Sustaining Partners – such as the Early Career Support Funds.
To conclude this years' recap, we convey our sincere thanks for the many hours of hard work contributed by our SSSI staff and regional volunteers. A
huge amount of work goes on behind the scenes to conduct the program of events and provide the services to our members. To all those involved,
thank you for your continued support and dedication to our industry.
We must acknowledge the great support received from our sustaining partners – CR Kennedy, Cairns Regional Council, the University of Queensland,
DigitalGlobe, Qld Survey Pegs, UPG, Queensland Department of Transport & Main Roads and the University of the Sunshine Coast and our regular
sponsors of our events, C.R. Kennedy, UrbisPro, Listech and Position Partners. Your contributions are greatly appreciated and without your
assistance, many of the great outcomes we seek for members would not be possible.
Finally, thank you to our members for your continued support through the last few years. You have been exemplary, and I applaud you for staying
with us. The future with SSSI Qld is looking exciting.
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NSW Regional Report
Gabriel van Wyk, Interim Chair

This past financial year has again seen some big changes for the SSSI NSW region. Zaffar Mohamed Ghouse was
transferred to Canberra, technically leaving the NSW region without a chair. At the same time the ACT region was
undergoing its own difficulties in leadership changes, especially after the passing of one of their members Craig
Smith. We decided to temporarily join the two regions NSW and ACT. Zaffar took over the leadership of both groups and
the committees joined temporarily. We immediately started a process of re-establishing the ACT. Zaffar as currently
acting as ACT Chair and I am acting as NSW chair. We still have a strong committee in NSW, and we will appoint
someone as Chair of the region over the next few months.
We have had many regional highlights this year, from another great success of the joint SSSI ACT-NSW Annual Regional
Conference held in Bathurst, November 2017, through to several other great events held around the state. We should
highlight the very enthusiastic YP events of the past year – hats off to Roshni and Alex for a great effort.
Another great victory for NSW was that Adrian White, our current Vice-Chair, won the National APSEA Professional of the
Year Award. Congratulations to Adrian. It is well deserved!
Zaffar continued to meet with other spatial organisations in NSW, and this collaboration has further strengthened the
bond between SSSI NSW and ISNSW. SSSI NSW has been actively engaged with BOSSI, SMIC and Location Leadership
Intelligence Advisory Committee of NSW Government.
I would like to thank our past and current regional operations managers, Ms Katya Zahn and Kei Nakakoji for their hard
work this year- and the many times they have extended themselves to assist in developing content and supporting key
events. The year was unfortunately marred by some great disappointments. A medical condition forced Katya to resign
to pay attention to her own health. Katya was a wonderful ROM and she made a huge difference during her short time
with us. She was followed by Kei Nakakoji, who after a very short time with us was also forced to resign, this due to
family issues that demanded her attention. These were two very capable people and we were really saddened to see
them both go. Fortunately, this story is not all bad: we do want to welcome Megan Lavender as our new ROM! She
comes with a wealth of experience and we are looking forward to working with Megan and we also want to thank Kei for
continuing to assist Megan while she finds her feet.
I would also like to thank our regional committee, volunteers and members for their continued support to the growth of
NSW region.
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Events held in 2017/18 included:






19/9/2017 - NSW Education Webinar
08/2/2018 - Twilight Event – Remote Sensing: Modern Imagery & Sensors
28/3/2018 - Cadastral Highlights
09/4/2018 - Asset Management Workshop
20/6/2018 - Twilight Networking – Australian Developments in Hydrography
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ACT Regional Report, Chair
Zaffar Sadiq Mohamed-Ghouse

The year 2017-2018 was a difficult year in the ACT Region, like other regions we have
struggled to engage members and those on the fringe of the organisation. We have
tried rectifying the same with an Industrial Dialogue with varied interest groups
within our Industry on their expectation from SSSI ACT Region and the foundation
has been laid for the next year. Undoubtedly the highlight of the year was the joint
ACT-NSW conference held in Bathurst. The conference and awards dinner was a
success with good attendance.
The Mouat Tree was officially opened at the Namadgi Visitors Centre on Monday, 20th November 2017. Thanks
to all who contributed to the project, including the financial and in kind support from the ACT Government and
its agencies including ACT Heritage, ACT Parks and Conservation, ACT Office of the Surveyor-General and the
Canberra Museum and Gallery. A special thanks to ISNSW for their generous contribution to the project.
The following events were held in 2017/18:
 9/8/17 – Land Surveying Commission Twilight Event
 6/12/17 – NSW & ACT Regional Conference
 15/3/18 – Land Surveying Commission Twilight Event
 24/4/18 – Scrivener’s Breakfast
 27/6/18 – Land Surveying Commission Twilight Event
What to look forward to in 2018/19
Education is about to change as the SSSI National Education and Career Development committee and Let’s
Locate break new ground in engaging school students.
I hope we can organise some new and different learning opportunities for members in 2018/19. It is
anticipated these opportunities will engage those in all parts of our industry, education and the general public.
ACT is organising its annual conference after a gap of two years in 2018. We look forward to having our old
stalwarts and new members joining in to make the region and the conference a huge success and get the ACT
region back on activity map among SSSI regions.
I encourage you to consider a role locally to advance our professions and develop other skills that will help in
your own career.
I would like to thank Greg Ledwidge for his continued efforts in organising CPD events, his contribution has
been invaluable. Finally I would like to also thank our local Sustaining Partners, the ACT Emergency Services
Agency and the ACT Office of the Surveyor-General for their continued support of the SSSI in the ACT region.
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South Australia Regional Report
Franco Reo, Chair
For SSSI in South Australia, 2017-18 was a year of satisfying consolidation and exciting development of
our activities on a regional, national and international platform.
The SSSI SA Committee members once again gave of their time and expertise to provide our regional
members with a broad spectrum of valuable events and functions to attend, while advocating on behalf
of our industry at both state and national level. We continued to engage with our regional Sustaining
Partners, offering mutual benefit and building on key relationships.
In August 2017, we held the 17th iteration of the highly successful Spatial Information Day conference and Asia-Pacific Spatial Excellence
Awards of South Australia Dinner. Spatial Information Day continues to be the highlight of South Australian SSSI calendar and, in 2017
was attended by more than 500 delegates.
The focus of the second half of our year was preparing to host the Locate18-GeoSmart Asia 2018 conference in Adelaide, from 9 to 11
April 2018. The conference theme was ‘The Art, Science and Business of Geospatial’ and was the most successful Locate conference yet,
attracting more than 730 participants from 20 countries around the world.
In May 2018, SSSI SA formed a Land Surveying Committee to follow on from the important work undertaken during the previous 3 years
by the Legislative Review Committee. The Land Surveying Committee represents the Land Surveying community in SA and addresses
important issues as they arise, such as new Planning Legislation, Accredited Professionals and Surveying Practices.
SSSI continues to participate in the Stakeholder reference group for the new Land Services SA. Through the reference group, we are
able to provide valuable feedback regarding issues that affect SSSI members.
We were delighted to congratulate Iffat Ara, the winner of the 2017 Asia Pacific Spatial Excellence Award South Australia for a
Postgraduate Student, on receiving the national APSEA award for Postgraduate Student of the Year in 2017.
Our South Australian Young Professionals continue to be active and engaged in supporting the growth and development of the next
generation of spatial professionals in SA. In 2017-18, our SSSI SA YP Committee held a total of 8 events aimed at providing networking
and professional development opportunities to the student, graduate and young professional community in SA, including a SA
GeoRabble session, as part of the Locate18 conference.
In 2017, SA’s highly successful Spatial Information Day conference returned, bringing more than 500 delegates together to learn the
latest applications, theories and techniques being applied in surveying, remote sensing and geographic information systems (GIS).
In April 2018, SSSI SA was delighted to host the Locate18-GeoSmart Asia 2018 conference, we made the most of the opportunity to
showcase the best of what South Australia has to offer to our national and international colleagues.
The hard work and dedication of our members and supporters in SA paid off as we saw the most successful Locate conference yet take
place over three days in April. Captivating keynote speakers addressed us on topics such as; Freeing up boundaries with digital
engineering; Applying the Science of Where to improve health; The Importance of a Global Digital Construction Workforce; Collaborative
Governance: The Missing Ingredient in Most GIS implementations; The Road to the map of the future; The next industrial revolution &
time for Australia in Space; GPS in Australian Rules Football.
The conference presentation streams were complimented by a series of satellite workshops and forums such as Integrating GDA2020
into Business as Usual and The Art of Communication as well as a brand new Interaction Zone, offering opportunities for more in-depth
exploration of important themes such as The Orbital View: Space Meets Geospatial, Women in Spatial and Future-proofing.
SSSI SA must once again acknowledge the significant contribution of our local members and supporters, in the planning and delivery of
both our regional and national flagship events – what a year!
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Also in 2017-18, the SSSI Land Surveying Commission, in conjunction with the Surveyors Board for South Australia, held two more very
successful cadastral workshops, with over 120 cadastral and graduate surveyors in attendance at each event.
In celebration of International GIS Day 2017, SSSI SA held an evening of fascinating talks exploring some of the lesser known areas where
GIS is utilised. Attendees enjoyed presentations on issues such as Three projects from the Growing Data Foundation built on open data,
software and hardware by John Ruciak, Jim Plummer and Leo Gaggl of the Growing Data Foundation; Bathymetric data repository
through GIS: Storing, analysing and planning hydrographic surveys by Marko Draganic, of Precision Hydrographic Services; and the
fascinating Marree Man: Whodunit - and how? by Phil Turner of the Marree Hotel.
SSSI SA also organised a Spatial Technologies in Local Government seminar in February 2018, aimed at exploring a range of interesting
and current geospatial topics, and a State of Play: Surveying & Spatial Science in SA seminar in May 2018. As always, these events were
well supported by the local surveying and spatial sciences community.
2017-18 Major Events
•
Spatial Information Day & APSEA-SA 2017, August 2017
•
Cadastral Workshop, November 2017
•
International GIS Day, November 2017
•
Spatial Technology in Local Government, February 2018
•
Locate18-GeoSmart Asia 2018, April 2018
•
State of Play: Surveying & Spatial Science in SA, May 2018
•
Cadastral Workshop, June 2018
South Australian Asia Pacific Spatial Excellence Awards winners 2017
SASEA Individual Award Winners

SASEA Industry Award Winners

Spatial Professional of the Year

Greg van Gaans

Technical Excellence

Michael Grear Surveys

Young Professional of the Year

Tom Jeffrey

Environment and
Sustainability

Dept of Primary Industries
and Regions South Australia

Women in Spatial

Georgie Cassar

Small Project Award

Vinehealth Australia

Educational Development

Stephen Fildes

Undergraduate/Graduate Student

Tasya Sarira

Spatial Enablement

Friends of Sturt Gorge

Post Graduate Research

Iffat Ara

Aerometrex & Jacobs

JB & JW Calder Award

Michael Pohl

Innovation &
Commercialisation

SSSI SA is excited to announce that we'll be doing things a little differently with Spatial Information Day in 2018. In fact, we are not
having a Spatial Information Day – instead we are having a SIDx! SIDx will see new ideas, a demonstration space for hardware or
software, a debate, and lots more.
We will also continue our focus on delivering great opportunities and services to our regional members, as well as a strong, unified voice
for our industry in South Australia.
I would like to thank the SSSI South Australian Regional Committee, the Young Professionals Committee and the Spatial Information Day
2016 Organising Committee for their outstanding contribution and their commitment and passion in bringing events together and giving
our members an opportunity to learn and be connected. I would also like to thank our ROM Imogen Craig for the great support and
work she does for all the committees and for South Australia.
Finally, I take this opportunity to thank our regional Sustaining Partners: Alexander Symonds, Ultimate Positioning Group, TAFE SA, The
University of Adelaide, University of South Australia and Flinders University.
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Victoria Regional Report
Lindsay Perry
The year 2017-2018 commenced with a few challenges for the SSSI Victorian Region
Committee. With the changing of ROM’s and Chair and some committee members
transferring interstate, this has led to committee members developing a deeper focus
to concentrate on member services, which has seen fruition in the latter part of this
year and will serve us well for the future
We were sad to lose two very active committee members in Alison Eames and Jeff Clarke whose employment took them
interstate and Nathan Wallace who was a SSSI representative on the Surveying Taskforce to Switzerland. We also lost our
ROM Barbara Best whose changing circumstances led her to seek full time employment.
We thank you for your contributions
Our Chair Thierry Demathieu had to relinquish many of his duties towards the end of his term due to work pressures. Thierry
was a great ambassador for SSSI and was an enthusiastic supporter, encouraging students and young graduates to participate
in SSSI activities. Thierry will continue his roles as SSSI representative on the Surveying Taskforce and a member of the LSC
Sub Committee. We especially thank Thierry for his contributions
The Victorian Regional Committee endeavours to continue to work in a collaborative fashion with other professional bodies
and industry associations, in circumstances which pertain predominantly to the Victorian Region
The YPs hosted a number of events including "Life after Uni" presentations given at the University of Melbourne and RMIT
University, State Library of Victoria Map Room Tours, State Control Centre Tours, participation in GEORABBLE and other
networking events. Follow the VIC YPs on their facebook for upcoming events.
Earlier this year saw the passing of SSSI Honorary Fellow Peter Ramm, after a long illness. As well as holding important
forward thinking insights about the impact that satellite positioning and navigation technology was about to have on society,
Peter was a strong advocate of the Surveying and Spatial Sciences Institute from its original inception as SSI in 2004 and its
merging with the Institution of Surveyors Australia in 2009, until his illness limited his active participation.
Late last year saw the appointment of Craig Sandy as the Twenty Sixth Surveyor General of Victoria. Craig was formerly
Surveyor General of the Northern Territory he is a strong supporter of SSSI and has already implemented and presented a
number of ideas for the future of Cadastral Surveying in Victoria, we look forward to working with him.
During this year we welcomed our new ROM Su Ling Meimaris. Su Ling has had a number of years experience working with
professional bodies and we are already benefiting from her expertise in supporting our operational and strategic goals.
The Surveying Taskforce
This year, the Surveying Taskforce Inc. of which SSSI is one of the legal entities, celebrated 10 years of existence. It was a good
time to reflect on its elected participants, aim and outcomes and a forum was held to re-examine and continue the aims of
the taskforce.
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The reiterated objectives of the Taskforce are:
1. Maintain Financial Sustainability.
2. Increase registration throughput and quality.
3. Raise the profile of the profession.
4. Increase student numbers in University Surveying streams.
5. Increase secondary student intake into tertiary study.
Congratulations to the 2017 APSEA Victoria Individual Award Winners
 Professional of the Year Award: Mark Shortis
 Young Professional of the Year Award: Danielle Cherubin
 Education Development Award: Stephen Falzon
 Postgraduate Student Award: Behnam Atazadeh
 Undergraduate Student Award: Joshua Batchelor
 Women's Leadership Award: Kellee Ireland
 Sustained Excellence in Cadastral Surveying Rachael Musgrave-Evans
 Thornton Smith Medal Brian Marwick
What to look for in 2018-2019
Andrew Bashfield has taken over the vacancy as Chair of the SIC Commission and is developing an increasing range of events
for SICC Members to look forward to
Dr Zita Ultmann has accepted the position of SSSI VIC Women in Surveying/Spatial (WIS) Chair and will continue the
momentum of the collaborative meeting that was held during October last year and attended by representatives from SIBAGITA, ISV, RMIT, and SSSI. Women in Spatial will continue its focus to raise the skill profile of professional women and to
recognise and support women in the Surveying/Spatial Sciences industry. The WIS group's attention will be on sharing
professional knowledge of the five SSSI professional streams, networking with fellow professionals, creating networking links
with other professional women's groups and increasing the percentage of SSSI membership of women.
SSSI has no intention to be a Melbourne-centric organisation; we have earmarked a number of future events to be held in
Regional Victoria
There are a number of heritage related projects we have identified which will raise an awareness of SSSI; including
contributions to Melbourne’s Maritime Museum and further recognition of Victorias Surveyor Generals at the location of
Robert Hoddles former residence
Locate 19
Victoria will be hosting Locate 19 next year, at the Melbourne Convention and Exhibition Centre in Southbank. Save the
dates 8-10 April 2019 in your diary

Lindsay Perry
On behalf of Vic Region Committee
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Western Australia Regional Report
Lesley Arnold, Chair

Western Australia had a successful year due to the significant contributions from the WA Regional Management
Committee, volunteers, and industry supporters who have given their time and expertise to deliver excellent events and
contributed to advocacy issues on behalf of our members and industry.
This year the committee published its first Members Annual - ‘Insight 2018’ as a way to celebrate our award winners,
academic achievers; and our Honorary Fellows, Fellows and volunteers, and to acknowledge the support of our industry
partners who have contributed to the success of our Institute.
Our advocacy this year has focussed on supporting new and the retention of existing courses Surveying and Spatial
Sciences; and consultation and input to the Strata Title Act Reform, modernised Work Safety Bill, Mine Safety and
Inspection Act, and accredited courses for hydrographic Surveying. SSSI have also made several presentations to local
governments on the role and importance of the Licenced Surveyor in the land development process.
The highlight for 2017-18 was the WA Surveying and Spatial Sciences Annual Conference held at the University of WA. The
theme for 2017 was ‘Grow Local, Think Global’, and showcased how the surveying and spatial sciences is making a broader
contribution to Australian and global economies.
This year we held our first fundraising event to support a Young Professional to further their career through attendance at a
national/international conference. The fundraiser was a huge success thanks to our supportive SSSI community and to
David and Kathy Aspinall for opening their private Art Gallery for the event. The $2000 Travel Grant was awarded to
Nicholas Flett (MSSSI), who used the travel grant opportunity to attend the URISA GIS Leadership Academy in Salt Lake City,
July 2018.
This year we celebrated a number of individuals for their excellence in the surveying and spatial sciences. WA APSEA
winners were Dione Bilick, Pat Burke, Petra Helmholz, David Ibbotson, Dr Khandu, and Lewis Walsh. Chair citations were
awarded to Tony Snow and Peter Douglas.
Each year the SSSIWA sponsors the Curtin University Spatial Sciences Awards. This year we congratulated Dr Christopher
Ndehedehe, Matt Jilley, Jeffrey Ball, Jhobie Verdejo, Sin Lam, Harvey Chen, Mr Patrick Blake and Thomas Schroeter for their
high achievements.
SSSIWA also sponsored the Curtin University Biennial Surveying Expedition where students follow the footsteps of early
surveyors and explorers to outback areas to resurvey areas that have not been surveyed since those early days.
With membership needs at the forefront of WA activities, the WA Regional Management Committee and volunteers held a
number of CPD events to showcase the latest surveying and spatial sciences technologies, systems and applications.
We started the year with a National Hydrography Seminar held in Perth. This event was a huge success - with just under a
100 de. Our speakers took delegates on an underwater journey from many different perspectives.
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Our Going Places Seminar also had a ‘Water’ theme. Lachlan Shaw, Venkat Coimbatore, Peter Fearns, Oliver Looker, Ralph
Talbot-Smith and Bryan Boruff shared their experiences ranging from the reconstruction of Shipwrecks and unseen aspects
of our water infrastructure using drone imagery; through to international hydrographic remote sensing, aerial ocean views,
bathymetric mapping and water system vulnerability.
The Engineering Mine Surveying Seminar was located at the beautiful Wembley Golf Course. This annual event is held in
partnership with the Australian Institute of Mine Surveyors (AIMS) and its success due to sponsors C.R.Kennedy, Deswick,
3D Laser Mapping, MAPTEK, Position Partners and Haefeli-Lysnar.
We also held our first Mapathon this year. The aim was to support humanitarian effort in Uganda. The Mapathoners
increased the percentage of buildings digitized from 55% to 65%. Our sponsor NGIS Australia, provided a great venue, and
much needed sustenance for the day.
The Land Surveying Commission (LSC) held three cadastral seminars, a regional cadastral seminar, and held monthly
meetings, providing ample opportunity to learn and earn CPD points. Landgate and the Land Surveying Licencing Board
(LSLB) are a big supporters of these events – contributing their expertise to lively discussions and presentations. Special
thanks are extended to Dione Bilick, Murray Dolling and Graham Holloway for their contributions at each meeting.
Our Location Intelligence Forum and Exhibition 2018 (LIFE 2018) will be held 19 October at the Perth Convention and
Exhibition Centre. The conference aims to show how location intelligence capabilities are transforming the way we live –
from precise positioning for transport and construction, to air and space-based earth observation for agriculture, mining
and understanding the impact of climate change, and much more…..
The year will be capped off with another Land Surveying Seminar, social networking events, industry golf day, Fellows
Annual Dinner, and our annual end-of-year celebration. The Calendar of Events for 2019 will be launched in January and
advertised in ‘Insight 2019’ – look out for it in your letter box and for emails closer to the date.
SSSIWA is fortunate to have the continued support of high calibre presenters. A big thank to all our speakers, from across
the five commissions, for your generosity in sharing your exciting and varied experiences; and to you ‘our Members’ for
your continued support of these events. I hope you enjoyed them as much as we have enjoyed bringing them to you.
I would like to extend personal thanks to Kerryn Stanes (Regional Office Manager) and the WA Regional Management
Committee for their outstanding contributions to delivering the program of events for the 2017-18 period; and to the LIFE
2018 Committee, I take this early opportunity to thank you for all your hard work and determination leading up to our
premier surveying and spatial sciences event. You are providing an excellent opportunity for Members to connect, share
and learn.
Importantly, to our partners and sponsors – you have made for a great year. You not only provide us with state-of-the-art
equipment and systems that our industry and users need; you also help to make our events affordable for Members
through your sponsorship efforts. I look forward to your continued support in 2018/19. Thank you.
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Tasmania Regional Report
Paul Digney, Chair
The 2017-18 year has been both a busy and productive for the Tasmanian Region. In September
the committee elected a new president as we said good bye to our previous hard working
president Alex Leith. Alex was a champion of the institute in Tasmania and his efforts and
commitment to the role was not only outstanding but greatly appreciated by committee and I
am sure the wider Tasmanian membership.
The key highlights for the year were our annual events; the State Surveying and Spatial Conference which was held in
Hobart and attracted an outstanding list of speakers supported by a strong attendance and the State of the GIS which was
held in May and attracts our largest attendance for the year.
The Tasmanian Regional Committee whilst small, consisting of only seven members works hard to provide strong
representation of our members. The committee strives tirelessly to organise and run successful events across the year.
The Tasmanian Regional Committee represents around 80 members, and we maintain a mailing list of an additional 170
individuals.
The committee currently consists of myself Paul Digney as Chair and Engineering and Mining Surveying Commission
representative. Scott Strong as Treasurer. Robert Driessen as TASSIC representative. Steven Flude as Land Surveying
Commission Representative. Dylan Colson as Hydrography Commission representative. And Michael Giudici and Natalie
Williams as general committee members.
We run two major events in Tasmania each year: The State of GIS and the Tasmanian Surveying and Spatial Conference. The
State of GIS was held at the RACV venue in the center of Hobart this year, and attracted over 150 delegates, which is a
record. This excellent half day event presents a broad range of speakers who offer a short 10 min presentation, which
provides a succinct snapshot of spatial projects and activities across the State.
The Tasmania Surveying and Spatial Conference which was held in September 2017 is the State’s major industry event and
regularly attracts speakers and delegates from across Tasmania and interstate. This year was no different with an
outstanding list of speakers providing excellent presentations on the current and future direction of our profession. The
event culminates in our annual awards dinner capping off what is always an outstanding event.
We held several smaller events, including Christmas functions in the north and south of the state. The northern Chrismas
event was held jointly with PIA and AIA, as has been the tradition for a couple of years. The southern event whilst small this
year gave our members the opportunity to network and reflect on the past year. We also continue to meet with the
students from the UTAS Surveying Society each semester, including sponsoring their BBQ.
For a small region we receive strong support from our industry and professional partners. I’d like to take this opportunity to
recognise our sustaining partners for the 17-18 FY, they include:
 Ultimate Positioning, Regional Silver partners
 Jacobs, Regional Silver partners
 Land Tasmania, Regional Silver partners
 City of Hobart, Regional Silver partners
 Geometry, Regional Silver partners
 City of Launceston, Regional Bronze partners
 Bream Creek Vineyard, Regional Winery partners.
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The Tasmanian regional committee is a small dedicated group of professionals who commit a significant amount of their
own time to the benefit of our members and the profession at large. Whilst the committee is doing an amazing effort,
including organising major events as well as promoting the profession through education initiatives, advocating for
members, and collaborating with other organisations there's only so much seven people can do!
To continue this great work, the committee will need an injection of new members to support the current group. In
Particular, it needs diversity including more female representatives and younger professionals. Whilst we have on a number
of occasions reached out to the membership calling for support we continue to struggle to get greater engagement from
the profession.
The positive is that we are not yet prepared to give up, and have faith in the work we are doing and take confidence from
the new strategic roadmap being developed nationally that it will resonate with the profession and will result in
membership growth and bring new people ideas an enthusiasm to what is already a great committee.
In conclusion I would like to again recognise the efforts and commitment of Alex Leith and thank him for his enduring
leadership over the last 3 years, the result of which is a strong and very capable committee from which to build upon
towards greater success.
I’d like also like to thank all the people who have volunteered their time over the last year, especially our committee who
have tirelessly given up their time. I would also like to acknowledge our partners and industry supporters. Finally, thanks to
the SSSI Members in Tasmania, for their ongoing support.
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Northern Territory Regional Report
Rob Sarib, Chair

For SSSI in the Northern Territory, 2017-18 has been a year in which we have continued and
consolidated ongoing initiatives, whilst focussing on preparations for some exciting new
developments in 2019.
SSSI NT was delighted to be able to sponsor 5 more students to attend the Charles Darwin University Conoco Phillips
Science Experience 2017.
The Science Experience is a national innovative and interactive program that supports the awareness and enhances the
career education of Year 9 secondary school students, in the areas of Science, Technology & Engineering through a variety
of seminars, interactive presentations, excursions, laboratory investigations and hands-on activities. The main purpose of
this event is to provide students with the opportunity of a 3-day science experience and to also empower them towards
higher achievement and learning.
We are grateful to Richard Purnell from Earl James & Associates for participating and representing SSSI at the Science
Experience.
In February 2018, SSSI NT was again happy to participate in the annual Goyder Day celebrations.
Goyder Day commemorates the arrival of the 1869 survey expedition led by Surveyor-General George Woodroffe Goyder
and his team of surveyors. Every year the National Trust celebrates Goyder Day with a ceremony marking his arrival on the
'Moonta'. The 2018 event featured talks and displays about the scene on 5th February 1869 both on the ground and
amongst the people involved. Sarah Hirst gave a very interesting talk on behalf of the Top End Native Plant Society (TENPS)
on Schultz and Hoare, in front of a display of information on Hoare and laminated copies of some of the paintings made of
plants collected. A guided tour was conducted visiting various relevant sites between Roadmaster’s House and Goyder Park,
even though there was some rain.
Next year will be the 150th anniversary of Goyder’s arrival and plans are underway to commemorate the occasion in a more
sustained but still appropriate way.
On 28 June 2018, an industry forum was held at Roadmasters House bringing together more than 30 members from the
Surveyors Board of the NT and SSSI. The forum was an opportunity to exchange and share ideas on topics relevant to the
spatial community in NT.
David Sach provided an update on Professional Training Agreement Seminars and Survey Land Records (NT Government)
activities. Dr Renee Bartolo discussed the connection between surveying and the drone industry, and Gregg Hestelow
reported on the formation and activities of the Survey Practice Directions Review Working Group. Rob Sarib discussed
recent SSSI activities in NT and also provided a presentation on preparations for the upcoming South East Asian Surveying
Congress (SEASC) 2019 which will take place in Darwin in August 2019.
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Trevor Menzies reported on the Mapping Darwin’s History exhibition which is currently on display in Roadmasters House
and is expected to run until after the sesquicentenary of the foundation of Darwin by the Goyder Survey Expedition in
2019. The exhibition has been open to the public since 24 August 2016. It comprises 23 maps and 38 photographs that tell
the story of Darwin from European discovery and settlement through to the present day. The map exhibition is
complemented with a collection of surveying, drafting and mapping equipment that have been used over time to survey,
map and construct Darwin. Trevor also advised that a book entitled In the Footsteps of Goyder has been published and is
commemorating the 150th Anniversary of the Foundation of Darwin. Finally, Amy Peterson provided a presentation on the
role of the Survey Services (NT Government) in establishing and maintaining geodetic marks and positioning infrastructure;
current status and looking towards a National Positioning Infrastructure capability. As well as the contribution of the NT to
a national program of datum modernisation, resulting in the gazettal of GDA2020 in late 2017.
Much of the activity of SSSI NT to date, has been in preparation for the upcoming South East Asian Surveying Congress
(SEASC) 2019 which will take place in Darwin Convention Centre on 15-18 August 2019.
The theme of the Congress will be Collaboration, Communication and Capacity-Building.
It is anticipated that over 500 surveyors across Asia Pacific region will attend this international congress, including
surveyors from across SE Asia, the Pacific, Australia and New Zealand. The conference will focus on how the surveying
remains relevant to the needs of society through working collaboratively to meet the future technical, social and
environmental challenges in digitally connected surroundings.
This is the first time since Fremantle in 1999, that Australia has hosted a joint international congress with the ASEAN Flag
Surveying nations. SEASC 2019 DARWIN is a fantastic opportunity for all Surveyors in the Asia Pacific to demonstrate
leadership in their field and share knowledge in one the fastest growing regions of the world:
www.seasc2019darwin.com.au
Thank you, as always, to the dedicated members of the SSSI NT Regional Committee and those who have contributed to
our events and activities throughout the year.
The support of our members and partners is vital in providing opportunities for the surveying and spatial sciences industry
in NT to learn and stay connected.
Special thanks to Imogen Craig who has provided administrative support to the NT from Adelaide.
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Remote Sensing and Photogrammetry Commission Report
Petra Helmholz, Chair
Before presenting the annual report we would like to notify our members that the SSSI
Remote Sensing & Photogrammetry (RSP) Commission Committee and the RSP community
more broadly, were saddened to note the passing of RSPC Committee Chair Craig Smith in
January 2018, after a short illness. Craig Smith was a valued member of SSSI and his

contribution to the field of Remote Sensing and Photogrammetry will continue to be missed. In March 2018, Petra
Helmholz was elected as Chair of the RSP Commission, with Bruce Forster as Honorary Secretary.
The RSP commission is proud to inform our members about latest trends and events using the Quarterly RS&P
eNewsletter, which continued throughout the year. The editor and producer of the eNewsletter, Karen Cambrell is
responsible for the high standard and timeliness of this publication. The newsletters are available on the RSP
commission resources page.
We are also pleased to announce that our memberships with the Asian Association on Remote Sensing (AARS) and the
International Society of Photogrammetry and Remote Sensing (ISPRS) have been renewed.
Furthermore, in 2017-18, the RSPC Committee identified the need to review the existing certification process regarding
the levels available and also the process to apply for certification to meet new industry needs. For the review of the
certifications we continue to seek the support of our members to better understand what aspects are important to
what level of practise or better what are the outcomes you want to see. Anyone interested in being part of the
reviewing process, or who simply wants to provide feedback on this issue, can send an email to chair.rspc@sssi.org.au
Last but not least, members of the RSPC were recognised for their work at the APSEA Awards: DigitalGlobe and PSMA
achieved Highly Commended for the development of Geoscape, Prof Stuat Phinn won the Eminence Award: Professor,
Dr Petra Helmholz won the Education Development Award and the winners / Highly Commended undergraduate
student Craig MacDonnel, Leigh Tingle and Lewis Walsh won with projects related to RSP topics (drone survey and
terrestrial laser scanning).
The RS&P Commission was represented at several major events during the year such as the 56th Photogrammetric
Week (PhoWo), Stuttgart, and the 38th Asian Conference on Remote Sensing, New Delhi. Details to both events and
further events from previous years are available on the RSP commission resources page.
Next to the representation at these international conferences, the RSP group contributed to further national and
international SSSI events such as:
- Feb 2018: The topic of the first Twilight Networking Event (NSW) was “Remote Sensing: Modern Imagery &
Sensors” and included two formal presentations as well as an open floor Q&A and face to face networking.
- Feb 2018: Dr Dimitri Bulatov from the Fraunhofer Institute in Karlsruhe presented at the Curtin Spatial Sciences
Colloquium (WA) about Semantic Scene Reconstruction – Focusing on Depth Maps Extraction.
- Mar 2018: A mix of talks within RSPC and SICC has been presented at the GOING PLACES 14 (WA) event.
Overall seven presenters report from underwater photogrammetry over drones to satellite bathymetry.
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Apr 2018: Associate Professor Guenther Retscher (TU Vienna) presented at the Curtin Spatial Sciences
Colloquium (WA) about Differential Wi-Fi – A new opportunity for localisation of individuals and groups of
smartphone app users.
April 2018: At the Locate conference a number of presentations were within the area pf RSP. To name just a few
presenters: Dipak Paudyal, Sean Gorman and Andrew Steele.
May 2018: Rebecca Ilehag from the Karlsruhe Institute of Technology, Germany presented at the Curtin Spatial
Sciences Colloquium (WA) about UAV Based Multimodal Remote Sensing to Assess the Energy Demand in Urban
Areas

Of importance on the national scale was the launch of the Australian Space Agency. Australia’s Remote sensing
professionals welcomed the establishment of an Australian Space Agency on 1 July, 2018. SSSI see this as the beginning
of a new renaissance in space-borne Earth Observation sensors. Our members look forward to the certainty and longterm growth of the domestic space industry and we hope that the Australian Space Agency will build further on this
capability and capacity in support of our international engagement in EO.
In addition, SSSI has started the communication to further interest groups such as Earth Observation Australia in order to
e.g. provide shared CPD events. We look forward to a productive co-operation.
Moreover, the RSP community will also be active/be present at national and international events such as the SEASC
conference in Darwin, the SSSI state conferences, and AARS and ISPRS events such as the commission I symposium in
Karlsruhe.
In conclusion, the RSP committee, which re-formed in the last few months, started the work on a number of urgent
issues (e.g. certifications and co-operation/communication to the wider RSP community), and we look forward to work
on those items as well as to build on our existing strength of providing our members with news and CPD events.
A big thank to all of the volunteers who helped and supported the RSP commission, and a special thanks to the national
board members: Bruce Forester (NSW), Goran Alibegovic (WA), Renee Bartolo (NT), Chris Bellman (VIC), Mary-Ellen
Feeney (NSW), Warwick Hehir (NSW), Peter Kinne (QLD), Tyson Hillyard (SA), Dipak Paudyal (QLD), and our officer Imogen
Craig (SA).
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Engineering and Mining Surveying Commission Report
Andrew Edwards, Chair

In the past year the Engineering and Mining Surveying Commission voted on its biennial
elections as per the requirements of the SSSI constitution. These elections were run with the
following results, and commission representatives:









Queensland Representatives – Noel Davidson
New South Wales Representatives – Dave Richey and Dave Mares
Australian Capital Territory – no representatives
Victoria – no representatives
Tasmania – Paul Digney and Andrew Edwards
South Australia – Andrew Barkham
Western Australian Representatives – Tony Snow
Northern Territory – no representatives

I am still the Acting Chair and I also serve on the professional standards committee and seek to continue to be heavily
involved with the accreditation process to try to make this profession grow in a sustainable manner, I look forward to the
challenges that will arise in the next coming years.
In 2018-19 our Commission is planning to run engineering and mining CPD events in all Regions and Andrew will be
hoping to have heavy involvement in workshops or presentations at the various regional conference events to further
promote the ESP-AP certification. We will also be investing funds in the promotion of the ESP-AP Certification program.
We will be seeking further endorsements of the ESP-AP Certification from other State and Territory Surveyor Boards.
Western Australia has continued to have regular Engineering Surveying Interest Group meetings with great attendance.
These meetings are a perfect place to start an involvement that can make a difference which is also very much
appreciated.
We want to thank those who have volunteered and ask that anyone who feels they can offer something, especially in the
vacant regions to contact chair.emsc@sssi.org.au as every bit counts. In 2018/19, I will be actively seeking more
volunteers to join this committee.
Thank you for a great year and we look forward to an even better 2019.
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Land Surveying Commission Report
Lindsay Perry, Chair
The Commission has had two face to face meetings during the year and corresponded by email as
circumstances dictate. We have representatives from all Regions on the National committee.
Because of the nature of regulations being state based, the Commission has been more active at regional
levels.
The National Electronic Lodgement Network (PEXA) and the moves to 100% digital lodgement of land transactions, is still causing some
restrictions on documents formerly able to be signed by surveyors. We are endeavouring to identify the appropriate avenues to make
further representations.
GDA2020. With the implementation of GDA 2020, as Australia’s official datum from 11 th October, 2017, we are now in a transition
period moving from MGA 94 to GDA2020. ICSM has a number of on line resources including fact sheets, transformation parameters,
technical manuals etc to assist in the transition. Local regional groups with the assistance of the ICSM GDA working group have been
providing support to stakeholders. The YP’s in conjunction with the NLSC also held a national webinar on the implications and
implementation of GDA2020
Comparison of Development Approval Systems. The development of a comparison of Development Approval Systems in each State
continues to be an ongoing project. By examining the various Development Approval Systems in each Region may help in recognising
procedures that can be streamlined in some Regions and evern help with land affordability.
Land Registry Privatisations
During they year the NSW, SA and Vic Land Registry’s have been subject to varying forms of commercialisation. The most recent is the
Victorian Land Registry which has been leased out for forty years for $2.89 billion dollars. In the Victoria only the conveyancing functions
of Land Registry have been subject to a lease. All other functions relating to subdivisions, surveying, valuation and the Registrar of Titles
remain in Government hands. One of the reasons for this was the learning from other States and lobbying to “educate” treasury officials
on the risks involved in a full sell off. We suspect that other States are watching these developments and will be seduced by the cash
cow that Land Registry’s can provide, however the LSC has developed a knowledge base from international and local experiences to
advocate for outcomes which are more in the long term community interest than just providing a quick dollar for cash starved
treasurers.
Locate Conferences
Steps are now in place to give the Land Surveying Commission more input into the program, making Locate conferences more surveyor
friendly as the principal national surveying conference.
Professional Training Agreement Mentoring
With a threated national shortage of Licensed/Registered Surveyors, a number of regions are carrying out activities to support
candidates under Professional Training Agreements to assist them in obtaining licensure in a more timely manner. Currently the Council
of Reciprocating Surveyors Boards of Australia and New Zealand (CRSBANZ) is investigating the option of recognising and equating the
qualifications and experience assessed to achieve cadastral registration with a Masters Degree. The lack of formal recognition of
Registration/Licensing of surveyors could possible diminish the value of their professional status in sectors of the community who are
uninformed about the assessment process of surveyors boards.
RICS “Chartered Surveyor” Trademark Application
The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) previously made application to trademark the term “Chartered Surveyor” in
Australia. They have about thirty six categories of Chartered Surveyor, none of which relate to Cadastral Surveying.
The Council of Reciprocating Surveyors Boards of Australia and New Zealand (CRSBANZ) supported by SSSI and SIBA defended this
application on the basis that chartered surveyor is a confusing and misleading term, and is not capable of distinguishing between the
services of RICS and the services of the Australian State and Territory Surveyors Boards who provide cadastral services under the
description ‘registered surveyor’, ‘licensed surveyor’ or ‘surveyor’. IP Australia finally released their decision earlier this year and the
trade mark application by RICS was rejected.
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Overseas Qualifications Assessment
SSSI is the professional body appointed under the Migration Act to evaluate overseas qualification assessments for surveyors on behalf of
the Federal Government’s Department of Education, Employment and Workplace Relations.
International:
SEASC 2019
SSSI has been appointed to host the South East Asia Survey Congress (SEASC 2019) at the Darwin Convention Centre from 15-18 August,
2019. This is the first time it has been held in Australia since Fremantle in 1999 and it is anticipated that over 500 surveyors from across
S.E. Asia, The Pacific, Australia and New Zeland will attend this international congress. The conference theme is Collaboration,
Communication and Capacity Building in The 21st Century and will focus on how surveying remains relevant to the needs of society
through working collaboratively to meet the future technical, social and environmental challenges in digitally connected surroundings.
F.I.G
This year the major FIG Conference was held in Istanbul Turkey from 4 th May to 11th May.
The Congress theme was “Embracing our smart world where the continents connect: enhancing the geospatial maturity of societies.”
and this was reflected in the four plenary sessions that had the overall themes:1.
Urban Development
2.
Modern Technology Usage for our Profession
3.
Rural Development
4.
Spatially Enabled Societies
There were 2,320 registrants and 400 papers were presented. We were well represented by Rob Sarib and Geoffrey Patterson at a number
of invited meetings including the Regional Bodies Forum which discussed International Land Management Standards(ILMS) matters, the
“Code of Professional Qualifications for Property Surveyors” and “European Requirements for Property Surveyor Activities”, Global
Surveyors Day and many other items.
At the final General Assembly Rudolf Staiger from Germany was elected as the new FIG President and Diane Dumashie from the UK and
Jixian Zhang from China were elected as Vice Presidents. SSSI personnel continue to play significant roles within FIG. Congratulations go
to David Mitchell who was appointed as Chair of Commission 2 (Education) and Rob Sarib continues his long involvement in FIG currently
being Chair of the FIG Asia-Pacific Capacity Development Network.
International Property Measurement Standards Coalition (IPMSC)
IPMSC continues to release its measurement standards for buildings. IPMS’s for Office Buildings and Residential Buildings were published
last year. An IPMS for Industrial Buildings was released for consultation in January of this year and consultation on an IPMS for Retail
Buildings will be released later this year. SSSI is represented by Mike Stapleton.
International Land Measurement Standards Coalition (ILMS)
At the FIG Congress in Istanbul, a draft report on the proposed ILMS Standards was presented. This is proposed to be a Standard designed
to enable global consistency in Land and Real Property Transaction reporting. The draft has been translated into French, Spanish, Russian
etc. and circulated for comment with the consultation remaining open until 31st Dec 2018.
The IKLMS has World Bank and UN support, as the World Bank, is pushing for greater transparency in land administration dealings. It is
anticipated the concepts will feed into National and State level here sooner, rather than later.
Global Surveyors Day
The 21st March each year has been declared Global Surveyors' Day, in order to highlight the importance of surveyors, their job and the
areas they work in. Several organisations, especially CLGE (Europe), NSPS (USA) supported by FIG, have decided that it is very important
for the world to reflect on the work of surveyors. It is essential to know what impact the many various kinds of surveyors can have all over
the world. It is intended that this day will be celebrated around the world. It can be celebrated in many different ways, and it is up to the
surveyors in each region and country to find their best way to celebrate the day.
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Spatial Information and Cartography Commission Report
Kerry Smyth, Chair
It is with great optimism that I report on the highlights of the Spatial Information and Cartography
Commission and give an outline of the year ahead. 2017-18 has been a challenging year with
leadership and structural change impacting our limited support services. Fortunately, the roll-out of
the new SSSI website has provided the opportunity to re-visit the public face of the SI&C Commission
and consider how best to identify with the emerging Body of Knowledge.
The 2017 elections brought change with myself taking over from Hanno Klahn as national chair and
Zaffar Sadiq Mohamed-Ghouse being deputy chair. Optimally, the SI&CC committee comprises of two
representatives from all 8 regions in Australia, (the committee has run at half strength this year) and relies on ongoing input from our
members to provide the best possible services where needed.
Whilst the commissions vision and strategy are developed at the institute level, most events occur locally and member input is highly
valued. It is a sign of the times however, that local SI&CC chapters in all regions have diminished in a formal capacity, choosing to
consolidate activities with other commissions under the umbrella of their RMC. Often the RMC becomes stretched with not all needs
being satisfied. It is for this reason that the national committee plans to strengthen its coordination and collaboration in events.
SI&CC has taken leadership to cement a partnership for SSSI with the inaugural FOSS4G SotM Oceania 2018, to be held at Melbourne
University in November 2018. We have also contributed to the SSSI Strategic Road Map 2018-21 through the leadership forum and
several rounds of feedback.
The SSSI-URISA Exchange Program continued this year with Gabriel Van Wyk visiting the USA in October 2017 and Tripp Corbin visiting
Australia in April 2018 coinciding with Locate18 in Adelaide.
The GISP-AP Certification process is back on track with new Panel Chair Brendon Henry and his team of assessors improving turnaround-times. Looking forward the SI&CC has nominated Angus Scown to lead a small group researching the future potential and
strategic direction for certification.
During 2017-18 SI&CC has:
 Welcomed 162 new members (over 50% being student)
 Certified 4 new GISP-APs and renewed 1 existing (currently registered 77)
 Contributed to Locate 18 and State Conferences.
 Promoted Spatial Excellence Awards through nominations and judging.
 Collaborated with YP and WIS groups.
State Conferences were held in all regions and were, as always, well supported by our commission members and volunteers
contributing to the diversity and relevance for the wider community. The Spatial Excellence Awards were also well represented by
nominations and winners from SICC being elevated through to the national level APSEA. Our congratulations in particular to SICC
member Patricia Burke who received national accolades winning the inaugural Women’s Leadership Award, at the APSEA presentations
at Locate18 in Adelaide in April 2018.
SICC held the URISA Master Class Workshop Asset Management: Planning, Strategy and Implementation at the Locate18 Adelaide and
Sydney in April to coincide with the visit of URISA Exchange candidate Tripp Corbin from USA. Tripp is author of 2 GIS books and
conducted the training.
At Locate18 SICC hosted a hospitality lunch for Tripp Corbin the URISA Exchange Delegate and others in the Exchange Alumni including
Cy Smith, Penny Baldock, Lesley Arnold and Gaby Van Wyk giving the opportunity for robust discussion and networking. This comradery
rolled over to the next day when a general invitation to all SICC member for an informal lunch meeting was well attended.
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During the upcoming year we will focus and revitalise international relationships with particular emphasis on:
 New Zealand counterparts
 URISA MoU
 GIS Certification Institute (GISCI)
 International Cartographic Association (ICA)

Locate 19 in Melbourne promises to be a top event, so to encourage SICC members we plan to host a lunch-time general meeting of
the commission and provide network opportunities for the URISA exchange alumni to share their experiences. Plans are underway
for a pre-conference masterclass to be scheduled.
Partnering with the inaugural Free and Open Source Software for Geospatial and State of the Map Oceania 2018 Conference (FOSS4G
SotM Oceania 2018), to be held at Melbourne University in November 2018. This is the combination of two groups of ‘open’ people,
the software people (Free and Open Source Software for Geospatial) and the data people (OpenStreetMap).
An improved suite of SICC lead events in each region targeting our members, unfolding technologies, emerging trends and aimed at
engaging the wider community. Designed to form part of the SSSI national event calendar with raised market profile and promotion.
Feedback from Nicholas Flett (MSSSI) recipient of the SSSIWA Travel Grant, who travelled to the URISA GIS Leadership Academy in
Salt Lake City, July 23-27.
In conclusion, I wish to sincerely thank 2017-18 Commission Sustaining Partners, whose contribution throughout the year has
continued to support our capacity to deliver SICC events and strategic initiatives. I would also like to acknowledge and thank the
Universities and TAFEs around Australia, for their in-kind support across many of our activities, not least by introducing the next
generation of spatial scientists to their professional membership association.
I would like to acknowledge and thank our national committee taking office from October 2017, who have committed to various
portfolio responsibilities during the year:
 Shaik Mohamed Zaffar Sadiq Mohamed-Ghouse (NSW & ACT)
 Hanno Klahn (NSW)
 Angus Scown (Qld)
 Adam Socak (Qld)
 Georgina Cassar (SA)
 Mary Lewitzka (SA)
 Robert Driessen (Tas)
 Andrew Bashfield (Vic)
 Kerry Smyth (WA)
 Nikolas Kostraby (WA & NSW)
And in retrospect the work done by outgoing committee members.
 Alan Hobson (Qld)
 Peter Birkett (WA)
 Geeta Kumar (NSW)
 Defkalion Kalogridis (Vic)
Finally, on behalf of the Spatial Information & Cartography Commission National Committee, I extend thanks to all SSSI-SICC
members who continue to engage, support and participate in a full range of activities, and give us frank and fearless feedback on
ways to improve and develop. We welcome and sincerely value your input. We also acknowledge the considerable contribution of
national and regional staff in particular our executive Kelly Rischmiller.
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Hydrography Commission Report
Richard Cullen, Chair
Another strong year for the Commission. Most of our high-level activities are long timeframe with gentle
nudges here, face to face there and wrapped up with little fanfare after a successful campaign. So, when
the Commission reports on an outcome, it may have been going for years already with many hours of
volunteer time. Like the following outcomes:
The NSW Board of Surveying and Spatial Information (BOSSI) recognised the certification processes of the Commission’s internationally
accredited certification scheme. The scheme is governed by the Commission in order to maintain industry input and inacted by the
Australasian Hydrographic Surveyors Certification Panel (AHSCP). BOSSI as a legislated Board, has demonstrated the importance that
professional processes have in maintaining standards within an industry. It brings responsibility and accountability and promotes data
of consistent quality.
The Diploma of Hydrographic Surveying “Coming to Australia Soon” has drawn much interest. Members of the Commission and
Australasian Hydrographic Society would have received an increased level of communications requesting input to this. August saw the
final input to the process and the package then proceeds back to Government for final signoff. The next phase is to encourage uptake of
the package by training organisations and have industry collaborate and assist in the training with equipment and instructors where
required. The Commission is confident that the industry input will be there, but our history in bringing institutions onboard has not
been historically successful. Interested learning institutions include Curtin University, University of South Australia, TAFE WA but more
are needed. Interested companies or institutions are encouraged to submit their interest to the Chair of the Commission via email.
In the interim, the Commission’s Sustaining Partners PHS, iXBlue and Hydrographic & Cadastral Survey (HCSurvey), have all initiated
engagement in the provision of hydrographic training courses within Australia. PHS is providing SME instruction to the University of
South Australia who are looking to expand their hydrographic surveying module given new interest in the sector. iXBlue continue to
provide similar activity within the University of Otago, NZ. Fugro announced their success in attaining accreditation of a Category S-5B
course running via Fugo Academy. This course however is yet another running in Plymouth, UK.
Annual dot point update on what the Committee have been, and continue to work on for the profession:









Engagement with the Australian Bureau of Statistics (ABS) on the re-definition of 311415 Hydrographer in ANZSCO and ANZSIC
– still waiting on the ABS to initiate the review however the Commission, Austalasian Hydrographic Society and AHSCP evidence
pack remains in their portfolio for review.
Review of the Surveying Award MA000066 to introduce and reflect the work environment of hydrographic surveyors – slow but
steady
Engagement with new members through a mentor program
Re-introduction of certification sub-specialisms. The first applicant assessed under the new Guideline occurred in June 2018.
The Commission are continuing to work through the list of those who previously had sub-specialisms noted in their certification
in order to reinstated those sub-specialisms. New applicants or those certified without a sub-specialism will need to apply to
the AHSCP. Certification as a hydrographic surveyor Level 1is the foundation level required prior to a sub-specialisation being
awarded.
New Terms of Reference for the Committee.
Mutual Recognition Agreement between the SSSI, NZIS and Canadian hydrographic certification panel to recognise each other’s
certification. This will provide for our professionals to be recognised in both locations as a certified professional without going
through the others process. This also means that our certification processes are jointly monitored to ensure that the
assessment, level of knowledge and level of practice remains relevant and equivalent. Standardisation of the profession.
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Leading on from BOSSI, the Committee will engage other State and Territory survey licencing / registration Boards to pursue formal
recognition of the Commission as the professional body for hydrographic surveying. This activity goes hand in hand with changes
already being adopted in the Committee with respect to strengthening internal processes governing the certification process and
Committee operation.
For CPD compliance, a new audit sub-committee Chaired by the new CPD Advisor Mr Owen Cantrill, will now be formed toward the end
of each financial year. The team will initiate the call for CPD and communicate with certified hydrographic surveyors about their
records as necessary. This may include assisting the surveyor to understand the policy better in terms of point limits or how to apply
the definition of complying activities. The Committee has initiated this sub-committee to allow a more streamlined process. A
dedicated CPD email address for the Commission will be provided on the ‘Hydrography CPD’ page for those who have questions
through the year.
New ACT Commission National Committee Representative. The Commission welcomes Captain Jenny Daetz, RAN to the Committee as
the ACT representative. It is important within our community that we have representation even in land locked areas or remote
locations. Without representation and the ability to conduct seminars or have input to other geospatial activities occurring nationwide,
our presence becomes diluted. Jenny comes with a wealth of experience conducting survey at sea, training hydrographic surveyors
formally at the RAN hydrographic school and providing executive level corporate capacity building with respect to the growth and
strategy planning for Navy hydrography. These skill sets will provide additional strength to the operation of the Commission, future
outlook and internal governance.
Peter Barr, a long-standing Committee member withdrew this year from the Committee. Peter expressed that he wanted to open the
role to new, up and coming surveyors seeking greater participation in their own future. Peter remains active within the NSW Regional
Committee. He has contributed to the Flinders commemorative poster, fighting for the correct use of “Hydrography” and
“Hydrographic Surveyor” in light of the hydrologists adaptation, taken up the cause of certification in the offshore industry and overall
has been a staunch advocate of best practice. On behalf of the Committee and Commission, I wish to thank Peter for his time on the
Committee and ability to participate even from the remoteness of the oceans.
The Commission will likely have a new Chair by the time of this publication and I will withdraw from the Committee also. While I have
enjoyed being an active participant in the promotion of our profession since 2005, there are now too many competing activities. As
such, this does not allow focus on the very important advocacy and internal objectives of the Commission and SSSI. It would be a disservice to continue in this light. It has been a pleasure meeting so many talented professionals and seeing the technological growth in
the industry being adopted and adapted in only ways hydrographic surveyors would. There remain many challenges to deal with such
as the automation of survey vessels and adjusting the certification to align with these changes. All I can ask of the Commission now, is
that those who have passion and a visionary direction for the profession, get on board with the Committee and assist in making that
vision a reality.
The Commission thanks its sustaining partners the Australian Hydrographic Office, Fugro Survey, iXBlue, PHS (Precision Hydrographic
Services), BlueZone Group, Hydrographic & Cadastral Survey, Teledyne Caris and Queensland Government’s Department of
Environment and Science. By being Commission level sustaining partners, the funding is directly used by the Commission to promote
and advocate industry’s (your) needs as hydrographic surveyors. Any training courses provided by our partners is immediately
recognised to provide CPD and this is a great benefit for our certified professionals and the partner.
The Commission acknowledges the great contribution of the Australasian Hydrographic Society who provide the connection not just
with the professional surveyor but also those who simply love the science of hydrography and want to be involved. The two
components of a learned society and professional representative organisation, are what continue to make our profession strong.
Combining the two, we grow to understand our traditions, history and why we do what we do.
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Young Professionals Report
Roshni Sharma, Chair
The SSSI Young Professionals are a passionate, driven, bright-eyed network of people across
the country who love the industry and want to create opportunities and make a difference.
The past 12 months have been an exciting and revitalizing time for students and early career
professionals, with many achievements in understanding our members and potential
members better and updating the events and initiatives that we offer to better meet their

needs. The National Young Professionals committee and the Regional Young Professionals Committees have been working
hard, running more than 30 events and webinars and providing access to opportunities and resources for members to
further their careers in the industry.
During this year, the National Young Professionals aimed to better understand what students and early career professionals
in the surveying and spatial field across Australia would like to see from their peak body and have been strategizing to
deliver these. We conducted the 2017 Young Professionals Survey from July to October of 2017 to understand the
demographics, employment types and areas, interests and needs of members and potential members in the industry, to be
able to serve them better. From this, we were able to better understand the types of events and initiatives that our
members and potential members want, what they would like to see more of, and how they would like to be engaged with.
In response to this, we have revamped the events and initiatives that we offer and improved our marketing and
communication. We have made student membership free for full-time and part-time students for the entire length of their
degree, making it easier to access the benefits that SSSI membership provides. We have also implemented a monthly YP
newsletter to inform members of what’s happening in a clear, easily accessible way, and put a focus not only on technicallyfocused events but on career development, a strong focus for many of our members which wasn’t previously getting met
as effectively.
This year saw the launch of our 2018 National Young Professionals Mentoring Program, which has over 80 participants
across the country and a few from overseas. This program, which runs from July to October and involves fortnightly
meetings between mentors and mentees on career development topics, has been extremely well received. We have had a
large amount of positive feedback from both mentors, who are enjoying giving back, and mentees, who are finding their
feet as they enter the industry.
We have also launched a National Young Professionals Career Development Webinar Series, which runs monthly and assists
students and early career professionals to better understand those intangible skills that help to be more fulfilled in their
study or work and to get ahead more effectively.
It is very exciting for us that the SSSI Strategic Roadmap is strongly supportive of young professionals, and we look forward
to a number of great new developments in this space with the support of the Board and management.
The SSSI National Young Professionals Mentoring 2019 will be a great follow-on from the 2018 program, and we are
planning on developing the program to have two streams to serve both students nearing the end of the degree looking to
get their foot in the door and early career professionals looking to develop their leadership and management skills. The
mentoring program offers a valuable opportunity to share the deep wealth of experience and insights that (young-at-heart)
experienced professionals who and develops emerging leaders. It’s a valuable way to nurse the talent that we have in our
students and early career professionals, and help to further Australia’s place in the international agenda for our industry.
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The Young Professionals are also working to create greater value and opportunities for students and early career
professionals at our regional conferences, but most importantly at national conferences. The focus this year will be on
Locate19 Melbourne Convention Centre, 8-10 April 2019) and SEASC2019 (Darwin Convention Centre, 15-18 August 2019).
We are working hard to provide technical and career development content at these, as well as social opportunities to help
YPs to develop strong and diverse networks.
Through the year we will also be connecting more with Universities and educational institutions, providing greater insights
about the industry to people looking to enter it. Through this, we aim to provide students with opportunities to connect
with potential employers and learn what working in the industry looks like.
Over the course of the next 12 months, the YPs will also continue to deliver career development opportunities from our
monthly webinar series and regional technical and networking events. We will also build our social media presence and
offer exciting competitions to encourage YPs to showcase their skills and passions – with the chance to win registration to
Locate19 as prizes!
It’s been an amazing year, and we look back with gratitude at the members who have attended our events, who have been
part of our initiatives, and the young-at-heart professionals who have supported the work that the Young professionals
have done. We are also very thankful for the volunteers who have been part of our Regional and National Young
Professionals committees, and especially to those new members who have joined these and those who continue to give
their time to make the great work we do possible. Thank you, and we look forward to an even more incredible year coming
up!
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DigitalGlobe – Gold Sustaining Partner

Access the most valuable imagery and data-derived tools to make your vision a reality.
DigitalGlobe, a Maxar Technologies company, is an industry leader in satellite imagery and geospatial intelligence,
serving a spectrum of industries across government, nonprofit, and commercial sectors. Our portfolio of imagery
products and analytics simplifies access to critical information about our changing planet -- empowering customers to
answer complex questions that impact environments, economies, and lives.
See what’s possible at digitalglobe.com

Position magazine and SpatialSource.com.au – Gold Sustaining Partner

Position Magazine and Spatial Source are proud to be continuing as Gold Sustaining Partners with SSSI to strengthen
professionalism and technical knowledge across Australasia.
SpatialSource.com.au continues to reach a wider audience, cementing its place as the leading source for industry news
in the region and it now competes internationally. Industry professionals depend on the free weekly newsletter to help
them make sense of a rapidly evolving industry landscape. Redesigned in 2016, the Spatial Source website gives visitors
even more industry news and commentary, and features rich video, animation, and web maps.
Spatial Source is accompanied by its widely regarded print counterpart Position magazine. Published six times a year,
Position has been informing and educating readers for more than 25 years. Subscription is available to all and is included
with SSSI membership. Position is now available in both print and digital, widening its reach and offering readers the
convenience of multiple platforms.
Together, the two publications are the best means to help SSSI-affiliated organisations better communicate with their
industry. For a small team looking to share their achievements or a multinational product and service provider trying to
reach the ANZ market, Position magazine and Spatial Source are the keys to accessing the surveying and spatial sectors.
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AIGO – Bronze Sustaining Partner

Position Partners Pty Ltd – Bronze Sustaining Partner
With more than 200 people in offices Australia-wide, in South East Asia and New Zealand, Position
Partners is the largest Australian-owned company focussing entirely on the distribution and support
of positioning and geospatial solutions for surveying, civil works, mining and building projects. At
Position Partners, we are committed to increasing productivity for our customers and building
lasting business relationships around high calibre positioning activities.
Position Partners is proud to be the exclusive Australian distributor for a range of world-leading technology solutions, including
Topcon machine control and positioning systems. We pioneer a better way by tapping into the latest innovations such as 3D
laser scanning and Remotely Piloted Aircraft Systems (RPAS), delivering complete solutions that incorporate hardware, software
and services. Our AllDayRTK network delivers robust, reliable Continuously Operating Reference Station (CORS) positioning and
Tokara Link enables efficient remote support and minimises downtime. A full range of leading instruments and systems is
backed by superior service and industry expertise to give our customers the support they need for any project.

Listech –Bronze Sustaining Partner

5858
42

Sustaining Partners Report

UPG – Bronze Sustaining Partner
From our beginnings as Herga 130 years ago this year to today, UPG is on the cutting
edge of its field. For over a century, we’ve been helping organisations throughout the
South Pacific gather, analyse and use geospatial date. From the outback to the cities to
remote sites in Papua New Guinea, UPG works with world leading technology suppliers
to deliver solutions made to meet our clients’ needs across such industries as land
surveying, construction, utilities and local government, mining, waste management,
and field services management.
UPG is a company that leads the way, not follows. We’re all about bringing best practice to our clients and helping them
achieve their aims, big or small.
Since 1992 we have been part of a group of Trimble distributors with 11 offices across the region, employing more than
170 solutions and industry specialists.
Building and strengthening long-term business relationships is at the heart of UPG’s business – in fact we have been
working with our longest-term customer for more than 100 years. Based on the values of excellence, teamwork and
integrity, the relationship we will build with you not only means we’re here to provide the best solution, but also
through installation, support, servicing and repair.

Photomapping – Bronze Sustaining Partner
Photomapping are the spatial information specialists. Experts in a broad range
of geospatial disciplines, our experienced teams of professionals provide cost
effective, tailored solutions of the highest quality for any project.

Our company is involved in all aspects of acquisition, production, presentation and the management of geospatial data
and can provide services to any client, large or small. Our range of cutting edge remote sensing technologies, modern
twin-engine aircraft and dedicated flight crews can respond to aerial LiDAR and Digital Photography requests
throughout Australia, Asia and the Pacific region.
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TAFE Riverina Institute – Education Sustaining Partner
TAFE NSW continues to enjoy a sustaining partnership with SSSI. As one of
Australia’s foremost providers of spatial and surveying training via distanceeducation, we have very much benefitted from the exposure that SSSI has provided
us. We deliver training that utilises Esri, MapInfo and QGIS software.
We continue to experience good enrolments in our nationally accredited Certificate III, Certificate IV and Diploma
qualifications in both Surveying and Spatial Information Services. We offer a variety of Statement of Attainment short
courses including:
·
·
·
·
·
·
·

GIS Essentials
Drone Essentials
Drones in Agriculture
GIS Analysis and Problem Solving
Spatial Database Essentials
Mapping on the Web
Photogrammetry with Drones [Coming soon!]

We have students across Australia and offer training to meet any organisation’s or individual’s needs. We have
established new industry relationships which are fundamental to validating the quality of our learning and assessment
resources. Our teachers bring strong industry experience having worked in private enterprise, Federal and State
Government agencies. This all combines to provide students with an innovative and engaging learning experience. We
look forward to a continued relationship with SSSI into 2018 and beyond.

EFM Health Clubs – Sustaining Partner
EFM Health Clubs provides a unique service between a regular gym and a personal trainer. Clients
have their very own fitness coach present every session to take them through a different session
every day. The sessions are personalized to each member to make sure that they are getting the
most out of their time in the club and the best results that they possibly can. We pride ourselves
on never locking members into lengthy contracts as our memberships are only on a month to month basis. EFM is
proud to have a partnership with the SSSI and provides all members with a 15% discount at any one of our health
clubs Australia wide. We look forward to working with the SSSI for many years to come.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
Your directors present their report on the financial report of the Institute for the year ended 30 June 2018.

Directors
The following persons are Directors of the Institute at the date of this report:
Gaby van Wyk
President
Jonathan Saxon
Treasurer/Company Secretary
Zaffar Mohamed Ghouse
Director
Paul Digney
Director
Franco Rea
Director
Kerry Smyth
Director
Lee Hellen
Director
Richard Syme
Director
Richard Cullen
Director
Robert Sarib
Director
All directors are participants in the spatial industry in Australia.
During the financial year ended 30 June 2018, twelve meetings of Directors were held. Set out below are details of each
person that was a director during the financial period, the number of meetings attended by each directors and number of
meetings each director was eligible to attend.

Directors during the year and at 30 June 2018:
Gaby van Wyk
President
Treasurer/Company
Jonathan Saxon
Secretary
Zaffar Mohamed Ghouse
Director
Paul Digney
Director
Franco Rea
Director
Kerry Smyth
Director
Lee Hellen
Director
Richard Syme
Director
Richard Cullen
Director
Robert Sarib
Director
Alex Leith
Director
Directors retired during the financial year:
Alex Leith

Eligible
to
Attend
9

Attendance
9

9
9
5
9
9
9
6
9
9
4

0
8
5
9
8
8
6
7
6
4

Director

Activities
The principal activity of the Institute during the year ended 30 June 2018 was to provide the membership framework for
spatial professionals to practise and thereby serve the needs of the spatial community.
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Results & Review of Operations
The net result of operations of the Institute or the year ended 30 June 2018 was an operating deficit of $281,903 (2017
surplus of $285,473)
Dividends
The Institute is a public company limited by guarantee and is prohibited by its objects from distributing its surplus to the
members. Accordingly, no dividend has been paid out or declared for year ended 30 June 2018 by the Institute.
Directors' Benefits
No director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit by reason of a contract made by the Institute or a related
corporation with the director or with a firm of which he/she is a member, or with a company in which he/she has a substantial
financial interest.
Indemnification of Officers and Directors
The Institute has not, during or since the close of the financial year, in respect of any person who is or has been an officer or
auditor of the Institute or related corporate entity:
(i) Indemnified or made any relevant agreement for indemnifying against a liability incurred as an officer or auditor including
costs and expenses in successfully defending legal proceedings; or
(ii) Paid or agreed to pay a premium in respect of a contract insuring against a liability incurred as an officer or auditor for the
costs or expenses to defend legal proceedings.

Signed this 10th day of September 2018
in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

________________________________
Director

________________________________
Director

DIRECTORS' DECLARATION
The directors declare that:
1. the financial statements and notes required by accounting standards comply with accounting standards and the
Corporations Act 2001;
2. the financial statements and notes gives a true and fair view of the financial position as at 30 June 2018 and performance
of the Institute for year ended on that date; and
3. in the opinion of the directors, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Institute will be able to pay its debts as
and when they fall due and payable.
Signed this 10th day of September 2018
in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.
________________________________
Director

________________________________
Director
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2018
Note

2018
$

2017
$

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Other
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

4
5
6

1,220,599
187,210
103,218
1,511,027

1,373,892
54,582
108,078
1,536,552

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Plant and equipment
TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS

7

635,000
635,000

635,000
635,000

2,146,027

2,171,552

43,409
453,910
1,570
498,890

67,169
121,335
54,008
242,512

-

-

498,890

242,512

NET ASSETS

1,647,137

1,929,040

EQUITY
Retained surplus
Initial Contribution
TOTAL EQUITY

1,647,137
1,647,137

1,928,817
224
1,929,040

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables
Current tax payable
Provisions
Unearned revenue
Money held in trust
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Lease liability
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

8
9
11
12

10

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
Note
Revenue from ordinary activities
Staffing costs
Occupancy costs
Events and administrative costs
Depreciation and amortisation
Income tax expense relating to ordinary activities
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
Other comprehensive income

2

Total comprehensive income attributable to members

2018
$
1,413,137
(802,987)
(569,650)
(322,403)
(281,903)
-

2017
$
1,618,755
(633,796)
(397,928)
(301,556)
285,473

(281,903)

285,473

1,551,130
(1,713,940)

1,421,701
(1,359,527)

9,516
(153,293)

9,770
71,945

-

-

-

224

(153,293)
1,373,892
1,220,599

72,168
1,301,724
1,373,892

Retained
Earnings
(281,903)
1,929,040
1,647,137

Total
Equity
285,473
224
1,643,343
1,929,040

-

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from members and customers
Payments to suppliers and employees
Interest received
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

18(b)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Initial Contribution
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

18(a)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Net surplus for the year
Initial Contribution
Retained Earnings at beginning of year
Balance at 30 June 2018
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE
2018
Note 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies
Surveying and Spacial Industries Limited applies Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure
Requirements as set out in AASB 1053: Application of Tiers of Australian Accounting Standards and AASB
2010–2: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Reduced Disclosure Requirements.
The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements of the Australian Accounting Standards
Board (AASB) and the Corporations Act 2001. The company is a not-for-profit entity for financial reporting
purposes under Australian Accounting Standards.
Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would result in
financial statements containing relevant and reliable information about transactions, events and conditions.
Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are presented below and
have been consistently applied unless stated otherwise.
The financial report covers the Surveying and Spatial Sciences Institute Limited as an individual entity.
Surveying and Spatial Science Institute Limited is a company limited by guarantee, incorporated and domiciled
in Australia. The financial reports incorporates the income, expenses, assets and liabilities of State and Territory
regions which are not separately incorporated.
The financial statements, except for the cash flow information, have been prepared on an accruals basis and are
based on historical costs. The amounts presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest
dollar.
(a)

Income Tax

The institute is a not-for-profit organization and only pays tax on non-member income. This year the institute
made a Loss of $52,224.00 from non-member related activity. Therefore no income tax was applied to the
account for 2017-2018 FY. Morover, as the institute brought forward tax losses $108,036.00 from previous
years, total Tax losses of $160,260.00 will be carried forward to next FY.
(b)

Property, Plant and Equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated
depreciation.
The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is reviewed annually by the Company to ensure it is not
in excess of the remaining service potential of these assets.
Property, plant and equipment purchases with a cost of less than $500 are expensed in the period of purchase.
All classes of property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight line method.
Depreciation is charged at the following rates:
Class of fixed assets
Rates
10% Furniture, plant and equipment
40%
The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date.
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(c)

Financial Instruments
Recognition

Financial instruments are initially measured at cost on trade date, which includes transaction costs, when the
related contractual rights or obligations exist. Subsequent to initial recognition these instruments are measured
as set out below.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market and are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Held-to-maturity investments
These investments have fixed maturities, and it is the company’s intention to hold these investments to maturity.
Any held-to-maturity investments held by the company are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method.
Financial liabilities
Non-derivative financial liabilities are recognised at amortised cost, comprising original debt less principal
payments and amortisation.
(d)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and deposits held at call with banks or financial institutions.
(e)

Employee Benefits
Provision is made for the company’s liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by
employees to balance date. Employee benefits that are expected to be settled within one year have been
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled, plus related on costs. Employee
benefits payable later than one year have been measured at the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows to be made for those benefits.
Contributions are made by the company to employees’ superannuation funds and are charged as expenses
when incurred.
(f)
Leases
Leases of fixed assets where substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the asset,
but not the legal ownership, are transferred to the company, are classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalised recording an asset and a liability equal to the present value of the minimum lease
payments, including any guaranteed residual values. Lease payments are allocated between the reduction of
the lease liability and the lease interest expense for the period.
Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the lessor,
are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.
(g)
Comparative figures
Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation in this
financial report.
(h)
Revenue and expense recognition
The Institute's membership subscription year runs from 1 July to 30 June. Only the membership fees and
subscription receipts which are attributable to the current financial year are recognised as revenue.
Operational grants are recognised as revenue progressively over the period of the grant. Operational grants
received in respect of future financial years are recognised as income received in advance (liabilities,
unearned revenue).
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Project grants are recognised as revenue to the extent that the monies have been applied in accordance with
the conditions of the grant. Project grants received prior to the year end but unexpended as at that date are
recognised as unexpended project grants (liabilities, unearned revenue).
Conference and seminar income is recognised as revenue on completion of the event. Income received
prior to the holding of the event is recognised as income received in advance (liabilities, unearned income).
Expenses incurred prior to the event are recognised as deferred costs (other current assets). Where a
professional conference organisers ("PCO") is used, only the net income/expense is recognised in the income
statement. Advances of seed money paid to PCO's and the balance of any surplus receivable for completed
events is recognised as amounts receivable for events (receivables).
Publications sales are recognised upon delivery of goods to the customer.
Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised upon the delivery of the service to the customer.
All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST).
(i)

Impairment

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying values of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use, is
compared to the asset's carrying value. As a not-for-profit entity, value in use for the company, according to
AASB 136 Impairment of Assets, is depreciated replacement cost. Any excess of the asset's carrying value over
its recoverable amount is expensed to the income statement.
(j)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The directors evaluate estimates and judgements incorporated into the financial report based on historical
knowledge and best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of future events
and are based on current trends and economic data, obtained both externally and within the Company.
Key estimates - Impairment
The Company assesses impairment at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the Company that
may lead to impairment of assets. Should an impairment indicator exist, the determination of the recoverable
amount of the asset may require incorporation of a number of key estimates. No impairment indicators were
present at 30 June 2018.
2018
$

2017
$

Note 2: Revenue
(a) Revenues
Operating activities:
Membership Fees

569,434

597,283

Sustaining Partner Income

137,128

136,452

Conference & other seminar fees

458,345

477,247

Certification & Qualification assessment

80,529

66,479

Publication sales

24,937

32,069

102,284

30,455

18,200

18,200

Locate Conference Service Fee
Management Fees
Interest

9,516

9,770

Donation to Institute from QLD IEMS
Rent

5,000

243,657
-

Other

7,763

7,144

1,413,137

1,618,755

Total Revenue
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2018
$

2017
$

Note 3: Income tax expense
Prima facie income tax payable/(benefit) on surplus from
ordinary activities before income tax at 30%
Add (Subtract) tax effect of:
Members expenses not deductible
Members income not assessable
Tax losses not recognised (recouped)

-

-

Income tax expense relating to ordinary activities

-

-

1,220,299
300
-

1,373,542
350
-

1,220,599

1,373,892

187,210
-

54,582
-

187,210

54,582

Prepayments and deferred events costs

103,218

108,078

Note 7: Property, plant and equipment
Property, Furniture, plant and equipment – at cost

635,000

635,000

Accumulated depreciation
Total Property, Plant and Equipment

635,000

635,000

Note 4: Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand and at bank
Cash on hand
Undeposited Funds
Electronic Clearing Account

Note 5: Receivables
CURRENT
Trade debtors
Other receivables

Note 6: Other current assets

(a) Movement in the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and the end of
the current financial year

Opening Balance
Additions
Depreciation and amortisation expense

635,000
-

635,000
-

Closing Balance

635,000

635,000
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2018
$
Note 8: Payables
CURRENT
Unsecured liabilities:
Creditors and accrued expenses
Other Payables

2017
$

40,212
3,197

50,818
16,350

43,409

67,169

Note 9: Current tax assets and liabilities
CURRENT
Current tax payable

-

-

Note 10: Lease liability
CURRENT
Lease liability

-

-

-

-

-

-

Note 11: Unearned revenue
CURRENT
Members fees in advance
Sustaining Partner Income in Advance
Conference income received in advance
Sponsorship Credit

264,249
96,797

8,510
11,606

44,029
48,837

72,018
29,201

453,910

121,335

Surcharge

Note 12: Money held in trust
Mouat Tree project Holding Account
Other Project Holding Account

12
1,558

51,679
2,329
-

Holding
1,570

54,008

Note 13: Employee information
The aggregate employee benefit liability recognised and included
in the financial report is as follows:
CURRENT
Payables (Note 8)

4,126

4,505

Aggregate employee benefit liability

4,126

4,505

9

11

Number of employees at year end
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2018
$

2017
$

Note 14: Company details
(a) Surveying and Spatial Sciences Institute Limited represents members in the field of spatial information in
Australia.
(b) The registered office and the principal place of business of the institute is 1st Floor, National Surveyors
House, 27-29 Napier Close, Deakin ACT 2600

(c) The Institute is a company limited by guarantee (ACN 135 572 815)
On the winding up of the Institute each member is required to contribute up to $20.00 per member to meet any
outstanding liabilities of the Institute.
Note 15: Key management personnel
(a) Details of Key Management Personnel
Names and positions held of key management personnel in office at any time during the financial year are:
(i) Directors of Surveying and Spatial Sciences Institute Limited
Gaby van Wyk
Jonathan Saxon
Zaffar Mohamed Ghouse
Paul Digney
Franco Rea
Kerry Smyth
Lee Hellen
Richard Syme
Richard Cullen
Robert Sarib
Alex Leith

President
Treasurer/Company Secretary
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director

(ii) Executives
Chris Malouf
Jonathan Saxon

General Manager / Secretary
Secretary

(b) Compensation of Key Management Personnel
Shortterm
benefits

Post
employment
benefits

Total

$

$

$

2018
Total compensation (Christopher Malouf)
68,722

3,069

71,791
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2018
$

2017
$

The directors did not receive any remuneration directly or indirectly from the Company or any related body
corporate for management of the Company, other than reimbursements of expenses incurred on behalf of the
Company.

Note 15: Related Parties
No related parties applied
2018
$
Note 16: Auditors' remuneration
Remuneration of the auditor for:
Auditing the financial report
Other services

2017
$

6,600
-

6,000
-

6,600

6,000

Note 17: Leasing commitments
Not Applicable
Note 18: Cash flow information
(a) Reconciliation of cash
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of cash flows is represented
by the following items:
Cash assets

1,220,599

(b) Reconciliation of net cash relating to operating activities to net surplus
(281,903)
Net surplus
Non-cash flows in operating surplus:
Depreciation and amortisation

1,373,892

285,473
-

Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/Decrease in receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets
Increase/(Decrease) in payables
Increase/(Decrease) in employee benefits provision
Increase/(Decrease) in unearned revenue
Increase/(Decrease) in current tax payable
Increase/(Decrease) in money held in trust

(132,628)
4,860
(23,760)
332,575
(52,438)

113,674
(43,008)
16,762
(301,575)
617

Net cash relating to operating activities

(153,293)

71,945
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2018
$

2017
$

Note 18: Cash flow information (continued)
(c) Restricted Cash
There is no restricted Cash
Note 19: Subsequent Events
No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly effects the operations
of the Company.
Note 20: Financial Instruments
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash
Equivalents
Non-Interest Bearing
Fixed Interest Maturing - 1 Year or less
Fixed Interest Maturing - 1 to 2 Years
Fixed Interest Maturing - 2 to 5 Years
Fixed Interest Maturing - More than 5 Years
Floating Interest

Financial Liabilities

Trade & Other
receivables

Trade &
Other
Payables

Income in
Advance

300
1,220,299

187,210
-

43,409
-

453,910
-

1,220,599

187,210

43,409

453,910

(a) Financial Risk Management
The Company’s principal financial instruments comprise cash at bank, receivables and accounts payable.

The Company does not have any derivative instruments at 30 June 2018. It is, and has been throughout the period
under review, the Company’s policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken.
The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are interest rate risk and credit risk. The policies for
managing each of these risks are summarised below.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset or liability will change due to interest rate fluctuations.
No financial assets or liabilities were subject to interest rate risk with the exception of variable rate at call cash
deposits.
Credit risk
The maximum exposure to credit risk at balance date to recognised financial assets is the carrying amount as
disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the financial statements.
(b) Net Fair Values
The net fair value of financial assets and liabilities approximates the values shown in the statement of balance sheet
and the notes thereto.
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AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION TO THE DIRECTORS OF
SURVEYING AND SPATIAL SCIENCES INST ITUTE LIMITED

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30 June 2018 there have
been:
(i) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001
in relation to the Audit; and
(ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

John Beard
Registered Company Auditor 15775
Dated this 31st day of August 2018

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE DIRECTORS OF
SURVEYING AND SPATIAL SCIENCES INSTITUTE LIMITED
Report on the audit of the financial report
Opinion
We have audited the financial report of Surveying and Spatial Sciences Institute Limited (the Company), which comprises the
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies, and the directors’ declaration.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of Surveying and Spatial Sciences Institute Limited is in accordance with
the Corporations Act 2001, including:
a) giving a true and fair view of the company’s financial position as at 30 June 2018 and of its financial performance for the
year then ended; and
b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and
the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for
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Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been given to the
directors of the Company, would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the time of this auditor’s report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial report
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board website at: <http://www.auasb.gov.au/Home.aspx>. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

John Beard
Registered Company Auditor 15775
Dated this 31st day of August 2018
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